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PEHCHAAN

The way a company operates decides its destiny, the people who work there are
the inventors creating the company’s identity and telling a story — perhaps more
importantly creating sequels. Our GSK Consumer Healthcare story of the falcon
took flight three years ago, where we stretched our wings across the horizon
carrying an ambition and the drive to achieve our goals.

Today we mark our presence with our ‘Pehchaan’ created over the years by
introducing GSK trusted brands to our consumers, achieving our targets,
foreseeing high growth vision to succeed, developing a modern culture and
standing true to our words. Indeed, we are a Fast-Moving Consumer Healthcare
company in Pakistan.

Our ‘Pehchaan’ differentiates and defines us fram our competition. Every year
when we set our goals, we keep in mind our consumers so that they can do more,
feel better and live longer. We stepped in this race together with our stakeholders

and stood the trials of time; our every effort was that of a falcon taking its flight

marking territories and showcasing its presence. This year, we are pleased to
introduce a state-of-the-art manufacturing facility in Jamshoro, expanding our
winning brands portfolio and welcoming diversified expertise into our team.

Here at GSK Consumer Healthcare Pakistan we work together as one team and
are proud to associate ourselves with the most innovative, best performing and
trusted FMCH company in Pakistan. This is our ‘Pehchaan’.
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GSK

Consumer Healthcare
Pakistan Limited
starts operations as an
independent company.

2016 -

2017 -

GSK Consumer Healthcare
Pakistan Limited got listed
on Pakistan Stock Exchange.

Transfer of Market
Authorization and Jamshoro
manufacturing license to
GSK OTC (Pvt.) Limited.

2015

GSK Consumer business demerged from
GSK Pakistan Limited.

GSK Consumer Healthcare Pakistan
Limited formed.

GSK OTC (Pvt.) Limited formed
from Novartis OTC portfolio.

GSK OTC {Pvt.) Limited
merged with and into GSK Consumer
Healthcare Pakistan Limited.

GSK Consumer Healthcare

Pakistan Limited inherits
manufacturing facility (Jamshoro)

& its portfolio with leading brands like
CaC-1000 PLUS & Qalsan-D.

2018
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Our
Vision

GSK's vision is inspiring:

“The opportunity
to make a difference
to millions of lives every day”

Al GSK we perform in unison by following our strong value sustem and ethical
guidelines as a source of guidance and inspiration to achieve our vision. Every
member of the GSK family plays a vital role in improving the guality of human life.
GSK's growth and development can be attributed to the contribution of the skills,
talent and passion of its people.

GSK Consumer Healthcare follows its core values of keeping consumers first,
demonstrating respect for people, acting with integrity, and operating with
transparency. We are proud of our commitment that enables us to enhance the
quality of peoples’ lives and helps us provide them with quality products.

Our mission is to improve the guality of human life by enabling people to
& 4 Fr

Do More, Feel Better, Live Longer
At GSK our mission acts as an underlying principle to whatever we do.
We follow a legacy of great science and innovative healthcare that

provides people around the world with healthier and fulfitled tives,
every single dau.

06
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Our Business

We are a science led Global Healthcare Company that
researches and develops innovative Consumer

Healthcare products.

Our Global Research

GSK has a significant global presence in more than 150
markets, a network of manufacturing sites globally and
large R&D centres in the UK, USA, Belgium and China.

( /\\,; Our Core

How are we structured

Our commercial operations are structured as a
combination of regional units and areas of focus. Each
business benefits from GSK's global commercial
infrastructure, international supply networks, innovative

R&D and significant scale.

Consumer Healthcare is a global unit, represented by
GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Limited.

Al GSK Consumer Healthcare, we are committed to delivering results underpinned by our values. These values
guide our actions and behaviors and lie at the heart of every decision we make.

Our core values are:
Consumer first

The strength of our
business lies in the
consumers we reach out
to. Our dedicated
leadership team drives
brands that have strong
purpose, and together we
ensure that the needs of
our ConNsumers are
catered to in the best

Respect

We cultivate an
environment of support,
inspiration and
development, and ensure
that as an organization, we
create diversity in culture,
thought and in how we
operate, in order to
collectively work towards
achieving our shared

Integrity

We must live up to the
highest standards of
integrity expected of us by
DUF Consumers, partners
and stakeholders. We go
beyond abiding by the law
and do allwe can to
rmaintain the trust and
respect of, and protect the
interests of, the

Transparency

Transparency is vital to the
way we work and helps
build trust. We strive to be
honest and open about
what we do and how we
do it. This improves how
we collaborate with each
other and the way we are
seen by the communities
we work with, It

possible wau. vision. organisations and demonstrates that we do
communities we work not avoid challenge and
with. discussion, and confront
problems as a team.
Annual Report 2018 o7



Our _
Expectations . e

| |
! I ®
: : our four expectations : :
| N i el e, il i e Fs |
I i
I I
To thrive in an ever-changing world and achieve our : Courage Accountability :
purpose, we need to adapt some of our behaviours to I . I
keep us competitive, all while staying true to our : {:.Q ' #a :
values. : | :
L@ 8-
Putting our values and expectations at the heart of N
everything we do, we become a high performing team. ‘?ﬁ'}'
One that works together to achieve our goal, in the ' >
right way.
Development Teamwork
))) Our
W\ Strategy
%ﬁ;ﬁ—:
Bring differentiated, high-quality Innovation
and needed healthcare products We invest in scientific and technical excellence to develop and
to as many people as possible, launch a pipeline of new products that meet the needs of patients,
with our three global businesses, payers and consumers.
scientific and technical
know-how and talented people. Performance
We aim to achieve industry-leading growth by investing effectively
Everyone at GSK will focus on in our business, developing our people and delivering Fiaﬁrlasslg.
three priorities — Innovation,
Performance and Trust: Trust

We commit to ensuring the quality, safety and reliable supply of our
products; and to building trust through our approach to
engagement, pricing, global health and being a modern employer.

o]z} GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.




Management’s
Objectives

Grow a balanced business

Centered on our category defining brands with healthcare benefits, create a more balanced
business and product portfolio, capable of delivering sustainable sales, earnings growth and
improved returns to shareholders.

Deliver more products of value

We remain focused on innovation so that we are better able to sustain a pipeline of products

that offer valuable improvernents in treatment for consumers and healthcare providers:

Simplify the operating model
As our business continues to change shape, we are transforming how we operate so that we
can reduce complexity and becorme more efficient.

This frees up resources to reinvest elsewhere in the business, or return to shareholders

wherever we see the most attractive returns.

Responsible business

Being a responsible business is central to our strategu, and how we deliver successis just as
important as what we achieve. Ensuring our values are embedded in our culture and

decision-making helps us better meet the expectations of society.

Significant changes in
objectives and strategies
from previous periods

5K Consumer Healthcare has completed
its second full year of operations and

intends to follow the same set of objectives.

Furthermore, during the year our objective
has been to ensure that the business
combination has been executed in a
seamless manner through sunchronization
of legal, requlatory, and other stakeholder
communications. Our focus in the times to
come will be to drive synergies from the
expanded product range, technical
expertise, and capacity enhancements
inherited through the merger of GSK OTC
with and into GSK Consumer Healthcare.

Relationship between results
and management’s objectives

GSK Consumer Healthcare completed its second full year of operations
as an entity, closing with a strong, healthy financial performance and
growth across our key categories.

Your Company had several new launches, including the significant
additions of variants in Oral Healthcare category and Skin Care variants.

Our restructuring and entity formation process was the most significant
milestone achieved in its own right, and our decisions, strategies and
numbers are well aligned with the direction we intend to pursue.

Dur successful second full year has set the stage for even greater
success in the years to come.

Annual Report 2018
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Conflict of interest among board
members

The Board has been constituted in compliance with
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2017.

The members of the Board, including
Mon-Executive and Independent Directors exercise
full independence and are expected to highlight and
recourse themselves in case of any possible conflict
ofinterest. No potential conflict of interest issue was
identified during the year, including but not limited
to, with entities under common directorship.

Policy for safeguarding of records

We believe that documentation practices have a
direct impact on product quality and consumer
safety, and we implement the highest standards of
record safeguarding through our Document
Management and Control policy. We have strict
data lifecycle management guidelines in place
which are implemented across all our activities and
processes. These guidelines outline procedures for
our data approvals, use, access and retention as
well as the use of third party archive service. This
helps ensure document accuracy, consistency
integrity, availability and legibility.

In line with regulatory requirements and our Code of
Conduct, we ensure documentation practices meet
our requirements for design, management and
control of instructions, reports and master
documents. We also have checks in place that cover
archive requirements for all our stored data, both
physical and electronic.

Governance

Whistle Blowing Policy

Ethical business conduct is the responsibility of
everyone working for and on behalf of GSK. It is the
foundation for building trust in our company and
protects our licence to operate.

GSK has global procedures on reporting misconduct
and safeguarding people who report these
concerns.

GSK emplouees are required to promptly raise
concerns of possible misconduct, potential conflicts,
or known breaches with the GSK Code of Conduct,
and other company policies and procedures.
Suspected violations of country laws and
regulations must also be reported.

®  Non-GSK personnel working on behalf of
the Company are also required to report
misconduct concerns, with 'Speak Up'
integrity line information provided in the
GSK Third Party Code of Conduct.

GSK will take disciplinary action up to
and including termination, in accordance
with local labor laws, against anyone
who threatens, or engages in retaliation
or harassment of any person who has
reported, or is considering reporting a
concern in good faith.

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.



Formal orientation at induction

New members are inducted into your Company’s . Our vision and strategic objectives

Board through an extensive orientation process, which = Our key performance indicators and measures

provides the Directors with an opportunity to enhance = SWOT analysis

and strengthen their management and governance . Policy on Directors’ fees and other expenses

skills. Key features of our formal induction program . Forecasts, budgets and high growth plans

are as follows: . Latest financial statements

. Overview of the role and responsibilities of the  The Board members also attend corporate governance
Director, as outlined by the Companies Act, training sessions to strengthen their skills and remain
2017 including but not limited to the Code of updated with the latest developments in management
Corporate Governance and other laws policies and understand best practices adopted by
applicable within the country leading corporations.

23
(qh Getting it right

\\; Critical Performance Indicators

We measure overall success and progress by looking at the following key performance metrics:

Category Market Share: Experience growth faster than competitors
and Brands Brand Equity: Increase value of positive consumer perception

Service levels: Ensure products are delivered on time and in full
Quality Cost of Goods Sold: Achieve sustainable savings on COGS

Service and Reliable Compliance: Track record of inspections or audits, without business or
Cost Control S
reputational impact

Channel Share: Experience fastest share growth across focus channels
Commerciol Expert recommendation: Develop top expert recommended brands across our categories
Execution Sales Force Ranking: Achieve the top 3 ranking in every market for pharmacy
and mass market

Talent Top Talent: Track and fill key roles with the best talent
and Culture Employee Engagement: Improved Employee Engagement Survey results year on year

Scientific Innovation Sales: Sales from products launched in the last three years
Innovation Key product launches: Execute brilliantly, achieving the annual target

Purpose Helping people do more, feel better, live longer
ond Values Focusing on values: Consumer first, respect, transparency and integrity

Annual Report 2018 1
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B Calendar of Major

29-Jon-18 29-Mar-18

Meeting of the Board of
Directors-4th Quarter 2017

Third Annual
General Meeling

5-Jun-18 20-Aug-18

Additionaol Board Meeting
regarding Merger

Meeting of the Boord of
Directors-2nd Quarter 2018

29-0Oct-18 12-Dec-18

Meeting of the Board of
Directors-3rd Quarter 2018

Sonction of
merger by the court

N\—~ Financial Events 2018

26-Apr-18

Meeting of the Board of
Directors-1st Quarter 2018

19-Oct-18

Extroordinary
General Meeting

Calendar of Major Marketing Events 2018

Apr-18 Aug-18

Launch of CAC-Hobit
of Calcium campaign

Launch of CAC
Lemon T-10

Oct-18 Oct-18

Re-lounch of Sensodyne
Ropid Action

Launch of Physiogel-
Ceonfident Campaign 2.0

Financial Calendar 2019

18-Mar-19 23-Apr-19

Fourth Annual
General Meeting

Meeting of the Board of
Directors-4th Quarter 2018

27-Aug-19 24-0ct-19

Meeting of the Board of
Directors-2nd Quarter 2019

Meeting of the Board of
Directors-3rd Quarter 2019

Oct-18

Launch of Ponadol-
Cinderello Compaign

Oct-18

Launch of Sensodyne-

Faces of Sensitivity campaign

23-Apr-19
Meeting of the Boord of
Directors-1st Quarter 2019
Feb-2020

Meeting of the Board of
Directors-4th Quarter 2019

Annual Report 2018



Overview of the
year 2018

Your company has achieved yet another milestone in 2018 as part of its journey to
establish itself as the best Fast-Moving Consumer Healthcare (FMCH) Company.

The journey that started in 2016 as an independent Company driven by science and
values, has now achieved its identity. The company now has its own manufacturing
facility in Jamshoro and a diverse portfolio acquired by the merger.

The highlights of this year include expansion in Nutrition and Pain Category because
of brands like CaC-1000 PLUS, Qalsan-D, and Voltral Emulgel which were acquired
by merger along with the relaunch of Sensodune Rapid Action. With the current
financial results, the companuy is set to perform even better in future by delivering

growth, driving innovation and keeping consumers at the heart of our business.

Performance
Summary

: Turnover : Earnings Per Share :
: 14,875,267,507 : Rs. 9.18 :
: : :
I ] |
. Gross Profit : People Driving :
: 4,340,072,113 : Performance 60 :
: : :
I I |
: Profit After Tax : Category Leadership !
: 1,074,551,943 : 2 |

14 GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.
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Strengths

1

2)

<)

4)

Global footprint with operations in nearly 150
countries and diverse portfolio of category
defining brands that have established
themselves as the leading products in their
respective markets.

Strong distribution network with collaboration
of 30 distributors nation-wide.

Global thinking with local execution, which
means that it pursues globol strategies that
make it win the hearts and minds of consumers.

State of art manufacturing facility in Jamshoro
serving three markets, Pakistan, Philippines and
Vietnam.

Weaknesses

1)

2)

Challenging price-controlled environment in the
OTC portfolio where absence of canducive
policies by the regulatory authorities is a risk.

Dependence on imported raw material,

Opportunities

)

2)

)

4)

Great potential in the export market to
capture new markets and grow consumer
base across the globe.

Strong E-market potential in the Consumer
Healthcare business, further enhancing the
customer growth.

Increasing awareness and demand for
healthcare products.

New product innovations and additional
variants can grow and diversify the portfolio.

Threats
1)

2)

Weak implementation of Intellectual Property
Rights can cause a damage to market share
and reputation.

Deteriorating exchange rates pose a high risk
to our profitability as we are highly impacted
by import costs.

Annual Report 2018
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Message from the Chairperson

), Chairperson’s
Review

It gives me great pleasure to report another year of key milestones. | am proud to
say that despite the economic downturn, regulatory constraints and challenging
business dynamics, your Company managed to achieve its goals.

Woe remain firm in our promise to expand our outreach to every corner of the country and
to provide easy access to quality healthcare products. Our priority is to improve perfor-
mance and focus on new product innovations to drive top line growth and serve our

consumers better.

Your Company is committed to enhance shareholder value and continue manufacturing
of innovative healthcare products that provide people around the nation with healthier

and fulfilled lives, every single day.

Board Evaluation

As part of our internal review process on the
performance of Board, we evaluated the Board in
terms of their business knowledge, industry
knowledge, attendance and contribution in meetings,
compliance with rules, and oversight of business as an
independent body. The key learnings and insights
were adequately deliberated, and necessary steps are
being taken to build the collective business knowledge
of the Board. From the results, we can conclude that
our Directors are well versed with their main
responsibilities to facilitate the Company’s strategic
direction and management.

Training of the Board

Directors are responsible for upholding the corporate
governance and giving the Company a strategic
direction. To optimize the effectiveness of the Board, it
is pertinent for new members to learn the dynamics

and operations of the Company. Your Company
conducts various training programs to make sure the
entire board is aligned with the organization's missions
and corporate governance. Mr. Talal Javed Ahmed
who joined us as CFQ in October 2018 and nominated
as an Executive Director, attended and successfully
completed the Pakistan Institute of Corporate
Governance (PICG) training in 2018.

Board Changes During
the Year

During the year 2018, we welcomed Mr. Talal Javed
Ahmed as an Executive Director on the Board and
Chief Financial Officer / Finance Director in the
Management Committee. He succeeded Mr. Farhan
Muhammad Haroon who stepped down in October
2018.

16
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Board of Directors” Meetings and Attendance

The Board of Directors met five times in 2018. All the meetings were held in Pakistan, and each Director's

attendance at these meetings is listed below:

Name

Ms. Annelize Roberts

Mr. Sohail Matin Executive Director

Mr. M. Z. Moin Mohajir* Independent Director
Syed Anwar Mahmood Independent Director
Syed Azeem Abbas Nagvi Non-Executive Director

Ms. Emine Tasci Kayo
Mr. Farhan Muhommad Haroon**

Mr. Talal Javed Ahmed***

Category

Non-Executive Female Director

Non-Executive Female Director
Executive Director

Executive Director

Meetings Attended

*Mr. M. Z. Main Mohajir fitled in the casuol vacancy on the Boord on 26 April 2018,
**Mr. Farhan Muhammad Haroon resigned during the year on 5 October 2018.
***idfr. Tolol Joved Ahmed filled in the casual vocancy on the Board on 5 October 2018.

Board Committees

GSK Consumer Healthcare consists of three commit-
tees to assist the Board for its optimal performance.
They have been listed below.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of 3 members, of whom
the Chairman of the committee is an Independent
Director and the other member is a Non-Executive
Director,

The Committee annually reviews the financial aspects
and appropriateness of resources, the corporate
accounting and financial reporting process, the
effectiveness and adeguacy of internal controls, the
management of risks and the external and internal
audit process. The Head of Internal Audit reports to the

Audit Committee and acts as Secretary of the
Committee. The Internal Audit Function utilizes the
services of an independent audit firm to continuously
examine Company records and operations, ensuring
fair financial reporting processes, compliance with
applicable laws and adherence with internal control
systems.

The terms of reference of this Committee have been
determined in accordance with the guidelines provided
in the Listing Regulations and advised to the
Committee for compliance (refer pages 33).

Annual Report 2018
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Human Resource
and Remuneration
Committee

The Human Resource & Remuneration Committee
comprises of 3 members, two of whom are
Mon-Executive Directors.

This committee assists the Board in fulfilling its
responsibilities in the review, formulation,
recommendation and implementation of Human
Resource policies and the appointment and
remuneration of the CEQ, CFO, Company Secretary,
Head of Internal Auditor.

It also considers and approves recommendations of
the CEO on matters related to succession planning of
key management positions and ensuring proper
compensation to GSK employees.

The terms of reference of the Committee are provided
in detail on pages 33 to 34.

Integration and Supply
Network Optimization
Committee

The Integration and Supply Network Optimization
Committee comprises of 4 members of the Board. The
purpose of this committee is to explore significant
Supply Network opportunities and facilitate a smooth
Integration process. The committee is currently
focused on assessing the post-merger scenario of GSK
OTC and GSK Consumer Healthcare.

Culture of the Company

Our culture and values drive everything we do. We
expect our employees to share our values, to act
transparently and with integrity.

We motivate our employees to put our values at the
heart of every decision they make through strong

leadership, offering individual development
opportunities and rewarding employees for how they
work as well as what they achieve. We want everyone
at GSK to feel proud of the work that they do, the
Company they work for, and the difference they make

Acknowledgment

I would like to extend my gratitude to the Board of
Directors for their valuable support and commitment.

I would also like to sincerely thank our employees for
all their efforts, as well as our customers and suppliers
for placing their trust in us. It is with your support that
we are growing swiftly and expanding this company
year by year.

Sincerely,

\
1

Annelize Roberts
Chairperson
March 18, 2019
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to the Shareholders

We are pleased to present your company's Annual Report along with the audited financial statements for the

year ended December 31, 2018.

The Directors’ Report has been prepared in accordance with, inter alia, section 227 of the Companies Act, 2017
and the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017,

Operating Results

As per the approval of the shareholders, (in the
extra-ordinary general meeting of the Company held
on October 19, 2018), the Scheme of Merger
sanctioned by the High Court of Sindh, (vide its order
dated December 12, 2018), GlaxoSmithKline OTC
{(Private) Limited, (a wholly owned subsidiary of
GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare BV,
Netherlands) was amalgamated with and into your
Company with effect from January 1, 2018.
Therefore, the Profit and Loss account of the
company for the year ended December 31, 2018,
reflects the results of the merged entity, whereas the
financial results for the corresponding period, ended
December 31, 2017, represent the performance of
GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan
Limited only, as the corresponding amounts of the
merged entities for the period before the transaction
occurred have not been restated.

The Board of Directors is pleased to announce a final
cash dividend of Rs.5 per share amounting to
Rs.585,272,540, subject to approval of the
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting to be
held on April 23%, 201S.

Net sales of the Company amounted to Rs. 14,875
million during the current year and profit after tax
was Rs. 1,074.5 million, vs. 2017 reported sales and
profit after tax of Rs. 8,298 million and Rs. 707
million respectively that did not include results of
GSK OTC (Pvt.) Limited.

Holding Company

As at December 31, 2018, GlaxoSmithKline
Consumer Healthcare BV, Netherlands held
100,423,259 shares of Rs. 10 each, representing
B85.79 % of the total shares of GlaxoSmithKline
Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Limited.

Pattern of Shareholding

The Company's shares are traded on the Pakistan
Stock Exchange Limited. The shareholding
infarmation as of December 31, 2018 and other
related information is set out on pages 120.

Chairperson’s Review

The Chairperson’s message to the shareholders on
pages 16 to 18 deals with:

. Board evaluation, Board changes during the
year and Board of Directors’ meetings and
attendance.

. Board committees which include audit

committee, hurnan resource and

remuneration committee, integration and

supply network optimization committee.
L Culture of the Company.

The Directors of the Company endorse the contents
of the same.

Annual Report 2018
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Chief Executive Officer’s
Review

The Chief Executive Officer's message to the
shareholders on pages 25 to 27 deals with:

* Economic overview and business performance.
* Performance review of the Company during the
year, highlighting the growth trajectories from the
previous year along with reasons.

= The present and the future challenges of
operating in the healthcare industry in Pakistan.

* QOutlook and prospective of the Company in order
to further enhance growth and performance.

The Directors of the Company endorse the contents
of the same.

Basic Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share after taxation for the year
was Rs. 918 as compared to Rs. 7.39 earnings per
share in 2017.

Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR)

Your company believes that respect for the
environment and people is an integral part of
conducting a business, which in turn boosts success
and consumer engagement of a brand. As a
Healthcare Company, we truly understand the core
necessity for outreach programs institutionalizing
the importance on health, hygiene, nutrition and
other community development programs in
Pakistan. Improving environmental sustainability is
another key area of concern. Considering that 2018
was the second- full year of operations, your
Company kept its major focus on growth and

innovation. We plan to contribute to our communities
through supporting social initiatives targeted on
progression of education, as well as provision of basic
utilities.

Human Resource Development
and Succession Planning

GSK Consumer Healthcare takes great pride in being
a Company that not only recognizes its people as the
key asset but also ensures that this belief is
translated into a working environment that provides
growth opportunities, respect, empowerment and
inspiration. As a Company that is geared towards
helping people ‘Do More, Feel Better, Live Longer’,
we ensure that our emplouees are not only
committed to this vision with the utmost passion and
sincerity, but are also well equipped to perform and
deliver at their best potential.

With this objective in mind, our Human Resource
Development team engages and develops policies
including training, remuneration, performance
evaluation and succession planning. This includes
an exposure to a wide range of opportunities as well
as international assignments. This is supported
through implementation of an internal talent
development system that helps provide leaders with
the data needed for strategic alignment and decision
making. Along with this it carries out a continuous
feedback, evaluation and communication program,
through which we ensure that our employees are well
aligned with, and really believe in, our core values of
Being Consumer Focused, Respecting People, Acting
with Integrity and Operating with Transparency.

In addition to this, we prioritize the highest standards
of individual accountability, and are constantly trying

20
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to evolve in terms of our ability to recognize and
reward the deserving talent that demonstrate the
right mix of commitment and dedication.

Given that we operate within the Fast-Moving
Consumer Healthcare business and exist strive to to
give our consumers better access to world class
brands with health-related benefits. We understand
the criticality of having the right team in place. Our
recruitment drives and processes are effectively
designed to acquire high potential talent, by targeting
top tier universities and acquiring the right mix of
talent.

With our truly high-performance culture, we are
canstantly evaluating and building a team that truly
considers itself the foundation of GSK Consumer
Healthcare.

Environment, Health
and Safety (EHS)

GSK Consumer Healthcare is determined to
constantly reinforce and improve the measures we
take to ensure that our emplouees have a safe,
injury-free working experience and are passionate
about the environment they operate in, Furthermore,
we work within a framework of operational measures,
policies, strategies and stringent environmental
maonitoring systems to remain committed towards
energy conservation, environmental protection and
occupational health and safety.

Occupational Safety
and Health

With numerous sustainable processes in place, GSK
continues a legacy in its ability to fulfil its purpose
without compromising the occupational safety of its
dedicated employees. To successfully achieve this
objective, the following robust programs and measures
have either been implemented, or are currently in
progress, that aims to strengthen the EHS
(Environment, Health, and Safety) system to improve
the quality of our working environment:

* Ensuring our employees are aware of operational
risks and are fully able to effectively manage these
risks when needed.

» Enhancing employee capability that trains them to
consider occupational safety as the number one
priority under all circumstances,

* Implementing standards of conservation that help
minimize our water and energy consumption, thus
promoting a greener environment.

GSK Consumer Healthcare aims to further enhance its
EHS policies across its supply chain as well as
production plants.

Business Ethics and Anti-
Corruption Measures
At GSK Consumer Healthcare, we strongly believe in

the value of integrity. It lies at the core of everything we
do and is the heart of every decision we make, with our
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values serving as our guiding principles. Our
anti-bribery and anti-corruption (ABAC) program
includes risk assessments, standards and practical
guidance designed to prevent non-compliance.
With this commitment, the Board of Directors of the
Company has set acceptable business practices and
standards of behavior within our ‘Code of Conduct’,

Our core values are:

. Consumer First
. Respect

. Transparency

. Inteqgrity

The Code is disseminated for training and signing by
all employees, including the senior management,
and is also available on GSK Consumer Healthcare
website.

Risk Management,
Governance and
Classification

G5k Consumer Healthcare recognizes the
significance of effective risk management which
eventually helps the business to deliver and perform
exceptionally. In order to sustain the highest
standards within the Company, our risk management
structure and internal controls function as a
combination to enable our leaders to successfully
focus on managing the core and principal risks of the
business. Our Risk Management and Compliance
Board (RMCB) is responsible to effectively identify,
assess, mitigate, monitor and report major risks that
the business may encounter.

Both internal and external factors play a part in your
Company's risk exposure. The RMCB is responsible

for placing appropriate policies and strategies in
place that continuously evaluate the key risks that
threaten the objectives of your Company and
minimize any potential risks. For this purpose, our
risk management framework ensures that the right
policies and strategies remain intact and serve to
mitigate key risks through an adequate 'identify,
record and minimize’ strategy.

Furthermore, the Internal Control Framewaork
established by the Company ensures risk mitigation
plans, designated accountability plans and the
escalation of any significant issues as and when they
may arise.

For this purpose, the RMCB has formed a structure
whereby designated Risk Owners are responsible for
identifying and treating significant risks while the
Compliance Officer facilitates in instilling a risk-
based approach to establishing internal controls
system. This eventually makes risk management an
integral part of decision making and business
operations.

Al GSK Consumer Healthcare, we prioritize
compliance in line with legal requirements and
therefore, our Risk Management, Corporate Ethics
and Compliance teams work in collaboration to
ensure protection of shareholder investment and
Company assets.

Owr risk classification is as follows:

1. Strategic Risks: These are the most significant
risks the Company faces and usually fall outside our
control. At present, the Company faces major
strategic risks on economic fronts concerning
devaluation and related inflation. In the year 2018
alone, Pakistan Rupee depreciated by over 27%
against the US dollar, thereby increasing our cost of
goods sold and diluting our margins. The devaluation
impact will be partially offset by the price increase
approved in 2018,
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2. Operational Risks: Risks in this category pose
challenges to the smooth functioning of the
Company's operations. Some of our greatest
operational risks include supply consraints and the
possibility of employee turnover and fraud. Your
Company manages these risks through various
strategies such as using alternative suppliers and
succession plans.

3. Commercial Risks: These are risks that arise due
to the commercial nature of the business. At present,
G5k Consumer Healthcare faces challenges in three
key areas:

a. Cash flow liquidity risks.

b. Setting up a pricing policy framework for all
brands.

c. Developing a long-term sourcing strategy

Related Party Transactions

GSK Consumer Healthcare ensures compliance with
Code of Corporate Governance for all the related
party transactions.

The details of the transactions are provided on pages
12to 113.

Board of Directors

As required in Code of Corporate Governance, all
details related to the Board of Directors, Board
committees, training and evaluation of Board are
provided in Chairperson’s review on pages 16 to 18.

Corporate Information

All necessary details related to names of Board
Committees and their respective members are
provided in Corporate Information on pages 29.

Directors’ Remuneration

As per the requirements of Code of Corporate
Governance Director’s remuneration is provided on
pages 112

Auditors

The present auditors, Deloitte Yousuf Adil Chartered
Accountants had indicated their consent to continue
as auditors. The Board of Directors endorses the
recommendation of the Audit Committee for their
continuation as the Auditors of the Company for the
financial year ending December 31, 2019, at a
mutually agreed fee.

Value of Investments of
Provident and Gratuity Funds

The Company maintains retirement benefit plans for
its employees. The value of investments of provident
and gratuity funds as at December 31, 2018 was as
follows:

Rs. 2018

Provident fund Rs. 121.8 Million

Gratuity fund Rs. 70.4 Million

Sanly 37%

ﬁwlgﬁm 63%

- E

Annual Report 2018

23



d. The financial statemnents are prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting

Contribution to National

EXChEQUEf and Economy Standards (IFRS), as applicable in Pakistan.

Your Company made a total contribution of Rs. 1.98 e. The Company maintains a internal control

billion to the National Exchequer by way of custom system which gives reasonable assurance over
duties, income tax, sales tax and employees’ tax the systems. The internal control system is

during the year 2018. reqularly reviewed, and mitigating actions are duly

considered as an when flagged by management
and/or by internal and external auditors. Oversight
is provided by the Board's Audit Commitee and the
Company’s polices are updated as and when
needed.

Our contribution through Sales Tax totaled Rs. 198
million, contribution through Income Tax totaled Rs.
743.79 million, while Custom Duty contributed Rs.
988 Miltion. Employee Tax contribution totaled Rs.
5757 Million.

f. There are no significant doubts upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

g. There has been no material departure from the
best practices of Corporate Governance as
detailed in the listing regulations.

h. The key operating and financial data is set out on

pages 64 to 73.
By Order of the Board

Corporate and Financial —

. \ =, :1.--
Reporting Framework 7L
As per the Code of Corporate Governance, Directors Sohail Matin
have carefully reviewed the accounts published and Chief Executive Officer
hence conclude that:

a. The financial statements prepared by the (_‘7‘“"""‘"’ = Eg

management of the Company present fairly its
state of affairs, the result of its operations, cash Talal Javed Ahmed

flows and changes in equity. Eisciitivs Diveciar

b. Proper books of account of the Company have March 18, 2019
been maintained.

¢. Appropriate accounting policies have been
consistently applied in preparation of financial
statements and accounting estimates are based
on reasonable and prudent view.
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( /@ Chief Executive
Ofﬂcer s Review

Message from the CEO

Dear Stakeholders,

| am delighted to present before you the Annual Report
of GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan
Limited for the financial year ended December 31, 2018.
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Overview of the Economy &
Business

Fiscal year 2018 was a challenging year for the
industry due to economic pressures and
unprecedented negative impact of foreign exchange.
We are proud to state that even in this volatile market,
we were able ta deliver top line growth. The merger of
GSK OTC (Pvt) Limited with and into GSK Consumer
Healthcare Pakistan Limited enhanced our leadership
position in the Fast-Moving Consumer Healthcare
industry and helped achieve top-line growth. From our
Rs. 14.9 billion sales, Rs. 8.8 billion was contributed by
GSK Consumer Healthcare Pakistan, Rs. 6.1 billion by
GSK OTC (Pwt.) Limited. We now have a broader
portfolio with market leader brands in Nutrition, Oral
Healthcare and Pain categories.

GSK's Healthcare portfolio in Pakistan continues to
gain traction amongst consumers and medical
practitioners due to an increased awareness of our
trusted and efficacious brands. At GSK Consumer
Healthcare we are committed to deliver high quality
products with superior value for our consumers. With
our strong brand equity and our complete adherence to
compliance standards we continue to strengthen trust
of our healthcare professionals, regulators, customers
and consumers.

With 2018 being a year of consolidation, we strive to
deliver solid performance in the upcoming year 2019,

Challenges:

Your company is faced with a number of external
challenges on economical, technological, competitive
and regulatory fronts.

In the year 2018, the difficult economic conditions,
specifically the weakening of currency caused imports

to be more expensive hence increasing the overall cost
of goods sold. Since most of our portfolio is regulated
and price controlled by the Drug Regulatory Authority
of Pakistan (DRAP), maintaining profitability at
regulated prices was a huge challenge in 2018
because of currency devaluation of over 27% against
the US dollar.

Our business operates in a highly competitive market.
We compete against companies across the local and
international spectrum based on cost effectiveness,
technological innovation, intellectual property rights
and pricing. Hence, with all these factors, we need to
ensure that we have the best in-class competencies in
place with an ability to develop and innovate
differentiated products and services that address the
evolving healthcare needs of patients and consumers.
We leverage the latest consumer insights and trends to
drive the right innovations and promotional campaigns.
Additionally, a strong retailer partnership is embedded
to ensure our consumers have access to our portfolio
across the country.

2018 Performance

| would now like to take this opportunity to highlight
some of our key achievements for the year 2018.

The merger of GSK OTC with and into GSK Consumer
Healthcare was transformational for existing portfolio
and business especially because it helped us integrate
the manufacturing facility of GSK OTC. With the
merger, we also acquired reputable brands like
CaC-1000 Plus, Qalsan-D, Voltral Emulgel adding
value of Rs. 8.1 billion.

Our flagship brand, ‘Panadol’ remains an indisputable
market leader in the Pain relief category with more
innovations planned in 2019,

We have also expanded and customized key brands
through additional variants and better reach. Our Skin
Health Brands are the most recommended by
healthcare professionals. Physiogel, mainly designed
for dry and sensitive skin, has recorded a prolific
growth of 60%.
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Furthermore, within our flagship portfolio of Your Company is committed to serve its consumers
Sensodyne, we re-launched Rapid Action variant this better, increase value for its shareholders, and exceed
year and maintained a market share of 12.8%. With 8 the average market growth. We strive to achieve this by
out of 10 dentists recommending Sensodyne, this being one of the country’s most innovative, best

brand is on its journey to further drive market share and  performing and trusted healthcare companies.

growth in the Medicated Oral Healthcare Sensitivity
segment.

Acknowledgement

a On behalf of the Board of Directors, | want to take this to
Looking Ahead opportunity to extend appreciation to our employees,
suppliers, and partners for their continued support and
dedication in the achievement of the Company’s
results. The professionalism and self-motivation our
team has displayed is truly inspirational.

Going forward, your Company has set its priority to
focus on increased customer value, innovation, better
performance and greater trust. Emphasis is placed on
increased productivity, reduced cost and improved
technology to be able to achieve long-term profitability

and fulfil the dynamic needs of our consumers and Sincerely,

healthcare professionals.

We anticipate our Sales to grow double digit because of '1_'_\ mL__
launch of new variants in Nutrition, Medicated Oral 7L

Healthcare and Pain category. To achieve our Sghail Matin
long-term high growth ambition, it is imperative that Chief Executive Officer
the Company continues to invest in our established March 18, 2019

brands to increase consumption and brand equity.

With enhanced Sales structure, and e-commerce
activities, we plan to drive exponential growth in key
trade channels and display agility to address the
challenging business environment.

We welcome the recent price relief extended by DRAP
to the industry to address the hardship arising from
increasing raw material prices as well as the steep
devaluation of Pakistan Rupee in 2018. Looking ahead,
the Drug Pricing Policy 2018 carries great significance
on the outlook of the Company and the industry. To
have a level playing field and to fuel the investment
behind the regulated portfolio, it is imperative that the
CPI based annual price increases are timely
implemented by the government.
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Annelize Roberts recently took on the role of VP
Finance -Global Industrial Operations & Quality -GSK
Vaccines based in Belgium, following on from her role
as VP finance Global Trading Partner Entities and the
successful consolidation of entities onto 1ERP
system.
Initially based in Dubai, she was the Finance Director
for the Middle East Consumer Business from Jan
2013 till 2015. Thereafter in May 2015, she relocated
back to London to take on the Global Finance
Integration role for the new GSK Consumer joint
venture with Novartis.
Annelize joined GSK in 1999 and has worked across
several parts of the organization including roles in the:
Consumer Healthcare, Corporate, ViV Healthcare
covering finance partnering, supply chain planning,
‘finance support services and project integration roles.
- She qualified as a Chartered Accountant in South
 Africa, completing her articles with KPMG and is also

aChottered Management Accountant (ACMA)and

—
I

 holdsdegreesin Accounting and Information

Sohail Matin commenced his career with Glaxo
Pakistan Limited in Supply Chain in 1986 and then
moved to SK&F and Sterling Winthrop. He joined
SmithKline Beecham in 1997 and has worked as
Director Quality Assurance & Manufacturing
Development in Pakistan and Area Regulatory &
Business Development Director Middle East &
Africa in Dubai. Sohail moved back to Pakistan in
2007, where for the next seven years he served as
a GM of Consumer Healthcare (Pakistan), before
taking his current role of CEO and GM of
GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan
Ltd. and GSK OTC (Pvt.) Ltd. N

Sohail Matin holds a Master degree in Mechanical
Engineering from Stevens Institute of Technology,
followed by an MBA in Management from
Oktahoma State University.
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M. Z. Moin Mohajir's business experience spans 40 years.
After qualifuing as a Chartered Accountant with A.F.
Ferguson & Co. he joined Pakistan Security Printing
Corporation in 1978, where he was Chief
Accountant/Company Secretary. In 1881 he joined
Sanofi-Aventis Pakistan Limited (formerly Hoechst Marion
Roussel Limited/Hoechst Pakistan Limited) from where he
retired as Director Finance and Administration in October
201.
He joined the Overseas Investors Chamber of Commerce
and Industry (OICCI) in October 2011, where he is presently
working as the Deputy Secretary General. He also serves as
the Independent Member of the Board of Directors and
Chairman Audit Committee of Pakistan Oxugen Limited,
Archroma Pakistan Limited, Wyeth Pakistan Limited and
Loads Limited. He is also a Member of Federal Tax
Ombudsman Advisory Committee (South), Member of
Advisory Committee set up by Chief Commissioner Inland
Revenue, Karachi, to facilitate/resolve issues of trade bodies
falling under the Civil Division of Karachi and a Member of
the Investigation and Taxation committees of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP). :
His previous other responsibilities include; Member of the
Board of Directors and Chairman Audit Committee -
Pakistan Industrial Development Corporation (PIDC),
Member of the Board of Directors and Audit Committee -
Standard Chartered Leasing Limited, Member of the Board of
Directors and Audit Committee - Sindh Modaraba Limited,

Chairman of the Election Committee - ICAP and Member of

the Finance Subcommittees of two major Clubs.
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Syed Anwar Mahmood, who retired as a
Secretary to the Government of Pakistan in
2008 after heading the Ministry of Health and
the Ministry of Information & Broadcasting,
now heads his own consultancy, media and
government relations firm. He also publishes
and edits a monthly magazine titled Health
and Pharma.

He graduated with honours in Economics and
later obtained a Master's degree also in the
same discipline. Mahmood joined the Central
Superior Services (CSS) of Pakistan in
November in 1971. After training at the Civil
Services Academy, he was assigned various
positions and responsibilities during which he
earned varied experience both in media and
management, including hands-on-experience
of executing media and communications
strategy for the Federal Government at the
highest level. He has served for nearly six
years, spread over two terms, as the Federal
Information Secretary and the government's
chief spokesman. He has headed many media
organizations as Chief Executive or as the
chairman of the Board, including PTV, PBC,

SRBC, APP and the Press Information

Department.




Talal Javed Ahmed joined GSK
Pakistan Limited in 2008 after
obtaining audit and assurance
experience from A.F. Ferquson &
Co. (a member firm of PwC
Pakistan).
Initially working with GSK as a
Finance Business Partner, he
played a pivotal role in the merger
& integration of BMS and Stiefel
entities; and continued to work on
business planning and
transformation projects.
In 2012, he took up regional and
global roles in GSK to optimize
financial systems and deploy
improved frameworks and practices
for managing our trade channel
investments across diverse market
archetypes. At the same lime, he
also served as the Head of Internal
Audit for GSK Pakistan Limited. In
October 2018, he joined GSK
Consumer Healthcare Pakistan
Limited as Director Finance.
Talal Javed Ahmed is a Chartered
Accountant and Certified Internal
Auditor who holds qualifications
from ICAP (Pakistan), ACCA (UK)
and 1A (US). '

< Abbas Nagvi

Syed Azeem Abbas Naqvi is the
Cluster Legal Director for Pakistan,
lran and Bangladesh and the
Company Secretary of
GlaxoSmithKline Pakistan Limited.
He has 22 years’ experience as an
in-house counsel and practicing
lawyer. He is an enrolled Advocate
of the High Court and joined GSK in
the year 2014 as Head of Legal and
Company Secretary. Prior to GSK,
he has served as Head of Legal and
Company Secretary at Nestle
Pakistan Limited for 11 years and as
Head of Legal with PTCL, Bank of
Punjab and PARCO as well.

He has a diversified background
and expertise in corporate,
constitutional, civil and industrial
law. As an expert business lawyer,
he has strong insight in business
development, requlatory and legal
environment in Pakistan Iran and
Bangladesh jurisdictions.

He has significantly contributed to
many critical projects at GSK for
which he received the General
Counsel Award along with several
other commendations for his

achievements.

Syed Azeem
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Emine Tasci Kaya joined GSK in
February 2016 as Customer Supply
Chain Director for Middle East
markets. In this role Emine oversees
end to end supply chain activities
for the markets in the Middle East
Area and pravides single point of
contact for the commercial
organization on Supply Chain
Performance.

Before joining GSK, Emine spent
ten years working in regional and
global supply chain roles both in
Turkey and Asia Pacific in FMCG
and Pharmaceutical industries.
Emine holds a bachelor’s degree in
Economics from Yildiz Technical
University and has a master’s
Degree in Logistics and Supply
Chain Management from University
of South Australia.

~ Emine
~ TasciKaya
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The Board of Directors

Our Board of Directors is the highest governing body
and represents the interest of all our shareholders. We
are focused on strategies that we believe are right for
the long-term growth and success of the Company
with the objective of delivering total shareholders’
return, along with staying true to our core values.
Keeping the above requirements in mind, we have an
extremely capable and dedicated Board of Directors
which has the knowledge, proficiencuy, reliability and
strong sense of consciousness required for protecting
investors' yield. The Board will ensure that the
management of the Company; its financial and other
matters are in accordance with legal and regulatory
reguirements. The Management Committee is
responsible for implementation of strategies and
policies approved by the Board, review of business,
capital expenditure appraisals, investment and
divestment of funds, determination and delegation of
financial powers and contracts with related parties,
etc.

Board’s Performance Review and
Continuous Professional Development
All members of the Board have been provided with an

orientation upon their joining, to apprise them of their
roles and respansibilities

), Board & Management
Committees

Audit Committee
Terms of Reference

The Audit Committee will meet at least four times a
uear. The Committee will assist the Board in the
effective discharge of its responsibilities for
corporate governance and financial reporting. It also
aims to review the internal control systems
including financial and operational controls,
accounting systems and reporting structure to
ensure that they are adequate and effective. The
Head of Internal Audit will have direct access to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee.

Report of the Audit Committee

The report of the Audit Committee will be provided
to the Board every quarter. The calendar of reviews
by the Internal Audit team and the format of the
report will be developed during the first Audit
Committee meeting during the year.

Human Resource and
Remuneration Committee
Terms of Reference

This committee will be responsible for dealing with
employee related matters including recruitment,
training, remuneration, performance evaluation,
succession planning, and measures of effectively
utilizing the workforce of the Company. It will also
be responsible for making HR policies,
recommending and approving salaries of the CED,
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CFO, Company Secretary, Head of Internal Audit and
senior management who report directly to the CEQ.

Integration and Supply Network
Optimization Committee
Terms of Reference

The Committee will be responsible for dealing with the
supply planning and network optimization strategy.
The Committee will supervise the supply challenges
consequent to the entity restructuring and provide
recommendations to the Board.

Risk Management &
Compliance Board

Members and Terms of Reference

The Risk Management & Compliance Board compris-
es of the CED, Functional Heads and the Head of
Compliance. It reviews significant risks affecting the
business, including strategic, financial, operational
and legal compliance risks. It oversees and ensures
the identification and implementation of internal
controls to mitigate significant risks. The Board
monitors the various compliance initiatives and
promotes risk management and compliance culture in
the Company.

Management Committees

The Management Committee comprises of the CEQ,
CFO, Brands Director, Sales Director, Head of Medical
Detailing, Head of Regulatory Affairs, and Head of
Supply Chain.

Composition of the Board

The Board consists of 7 members, including

Independent Directors and those representing
minority interests, with the necessary skills,
knowledge, experience and competence, so that the
Board as a group includes competencies and
diversity considered relevant in the context of a
listed Company’s operations. The Board comprises
of the Chairperson and the Chief Executive Officer,
which are two separate positions.

Role of the Chief Executive Officer

The CEQ is responsible for the management of the
Company and for its financial procedures and other
matters, subject to the oversight and directions of
the Board and in accordance with the Companies
Act 2017 and Code of Corporate Governance. His
responsibilities include implementation of strategies
and policies approved by the Board, making
appropriate arrangements to ensure that funds and
resources are properly safequarded and are used
economically, efficiently and effectively in
accordance with all statutory guidelines.

Role of the Chairperson

In compliance with the Code of Corporate
Governance, the role of the Chairperson is separate
from the role of the Chief Executive Officer, with
there being a clear demarcation between their
responsibilities.

The Chairperson is primarily responsible for
ensuring that the Board is functioning effectively
with respect to implementation of the Company's
strateguy, and that all issues pertinent to the
Company’s governance are placed on the agenda of
Board meetings, given that the power to set the
agenda and sign the minutes of the Board meetings
lies with the Chairperson. Moreover, the
Chairperson assesses the general effectiveness of
the Board, Directors and the committees, looks after
issues regarding avoidance of conflicts of interest,
and ensures that the Directors are empowered and
encouraged to participate in the decisions of the
Board. However, the Chairperson is not involved in
the day to day operations of the Companu.
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CEO & Generol Manaoger
Consumer Heolthcare

Sohail Ahmed Matin

Brands Director

Ahmed Jamil Baloch

Sales Director

Sadia Nasir

Head of Medical Detailing

Finance Directar

Talal Javed Ahmed

Head of Regulatory Affairs
Mazhar Shams

Head of Supply Chain
Shoaib Raza Irfan Qureshi
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Finance at GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare is a
strateqic function that ensures efficient financial
management and financial control. We partner effectively
with all areas of the business to oplimize the company's
financial performance, combining focus and a determined
attitude to add value to a range of business finance
functions. This includes customer planning, budgeting for
our valuable brands, monitoring of business performance,

business valuation, mergers and acquisitions and financial

risk management.

These decisions and core planning skills directly
influence the development, growth and health of our
brands. Through them we build a vision for a brighter and
healthier future of the world,

Our Finance goals and ambitions, which are aligned with
the Company and Global Finance strategu, broadly cover
the followingareas:

= Deliver the finance and commercial strategy
= Be a world class finance team

* Bolance risk ond opportunity

* Protect value for organization

In 2018, the finance team continued to support business
expansion through managing the merger transaction of
GSK OTC with and into GSK Consumer Healthcare which

will help enhance company's leadership position in the
industry and embed the manufacturing facility of GSK
OTC in Jamshoro.

Furthermore, the focus on people development also
resulted in talent being exported within the GSK Global
network, Farhan M. Haroon moved to GlaxoSmithKline
Global office based in UK as Audit Account Director where
he would be responsible for Global Consumer Healthcare
Commercial Business, Financial Controls and Reporting
across the Company. Hassaan Ahmed Siddiqui moved to
GlaxoSmithKline Turkey as area Financial Reporting and
Analysis Manager where he would be responsible for
Middle East Africa Consumer Healthcare Financial Close,
Control and Analysis.

2
F" : Farhan ;‘Eﬁfgg"
. M. Haraon Siddiqui

Finance is constantly focused on strengthening and
upholding internal controls to mitigate risk and thereby
protect value for shareholders. Moreover, our finance
business partners seek to add value for business through
their contributions in various initiatives pertaining to
product innovations and simplifying the operating model.
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Marketing

In-line with GSK values, the Marketing Team has continued to innovate its science
driven brands to evolve with the consumer journey.

The marketing function has been effectively engaged
in designing communication of its brands to connect
with consumers at all levels; enabling them to relate
with and better understand our brands. In 2018,
several campaigns were executed successfully across
the consumer healthcare portfolio ranging from the
Pain Relief to Oral Health categories. These strategies
reinforced our existing interactions across channels
with retailers, healthcare professionals and shoppers.

The year 2018 saw several leading campaigns,
including the "Cinderella Campaign” for Panadol
Children Range, which highlighted brand’s credentials
of high efficacy and safety. This is a prime example of
GSK's commitment to help people do more, feel better
and live longer. Moreover, the communication for

CaC-1000 PLUS took a step forward in 2018 from
calcium deficiency awareness to habit building,
recognizing category and consumer trends. Innovation
has not only been limited to communication, but we
have also brought in global scientific product
innovations such as GSK's patented Novamin
formulation in Sensodyne Repair and Protect.

Combining innovation in product and communication
we aim to strategically invest in our power brands and
develop class-leading communication through use of
the ever-expanding digital platforms and tools. This
pro-active approach will not only enable us to grow but
also support in reaching our consumers in a unique
and personalized manner.

Annual Report 2018
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2018 was a year where GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare’s sales team
proved to adhere to transparency and core sales values.

Despite challenging circumstances, our sales team
remained highly engaged and delivered impressive
results. They demonstrated professionalism and role
modelled courage, accountability and teamwork.

Our leading brand Sensodyne, achieved a double-digit
growth of 12.8% during 2018, demonstrating the
strength of GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare's
sales team, ensuring the availability of all Sensodyne
variants across a diverse market: General Trade,
Modern Trade Pharmacies, and Outlets.

Moreover, with the support from our dedicated team of
distributors coupled with our increased footprint in the
government sectors, our institutional business evolved
with a growth of 46% in 2018.

The pharmacu channelis the largest contributor to our
business, followed by both General and Modern Trade.

Throughout the year 2018, the company's focus has
been on developing strategic channels to expand the
current business landscape. This not only included
expanding our distribution foot print but also included a
dedicated service model for our “controlled substances
portfolio” keeping in mind transparency, accountability
and sales hygiene. E-Commerce was another Route to
Market model which GSK Consumer Healthcare
developed in 2018, which grew at an unprecedented
rate of 66%.

With a strong customer focus and respect for people,
we ensure to become the first choice for shoppers and
customers alike. Our sales team brings life to GSK
values and that is how we will beat the competition
and become the first and the largest Fast-Moving
Consumer Healthcare Company.
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GSK Consumer Healthcare Expert Sales Team strategy is driven by our science,

training and development.

With this goal in mind, we strive to be the first-choice for experts in Healthcare Profession. We focus on sharing
the research and competitive advantage that brands offer. Being the industry leaders in various categories in
Pakistan and globally, backed by science and innovation, the prescription data speaks for itself. The below points
will hightight GSK Consumer Healthcare Expert Team efforts which they execute in their day-to-day activities to
meet the company expectations and goals.

Informing Health Care
Professionals about the benefits
of our superior science consumer
healthcare products and in turn
creating widespread awareness
amongst consumers.

GSK Consumer Healthcare
products are based on scientific
research and highly
recommended by Health Care
Professionals around the world.
Hence, we are proud to promote
our brands by conducting
scientific engagement activities
for these professionals and
create brand awareness.

Expert team focuses on the
growing number of opinion
leaders who will represent and
recommend GS5K Consumer
Healthcare products to other
Health Care Professionals in
Pakistan resulting in increased
brand and company awareness.
We retained the Category
leadership position on top brands
like Panadol, CaC-1000 PLUS,
Sensodyne throughout the
period.
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Technology

We use advanced communication tools and technologies to establish a competent,
productive and an overall simplified solution with value-added benefits
such as increasing efficiency.

Our department oversees the installation and
maintenance of computer network systems and
focuses on providing well analysed business solutions
that would help GSK Consumer Healthcare to grow.

In 2018, Tech took an initiative known as ‘Making it
Easier (MIE)" in which it identified some processes
related to our employees and worked on simplifying
thern further, one of which was the SFA (Sales Force
Automation) - Order Taking Process for our distributors.
It proved to be a huge success as it showed improved
efficiency of our Sales Representatives and strong and
compliant commercial sales. For frequent travelers, we
replaced the time-consuming travel expense claim
process with an automated one, so it doesn't take much
time and increase efficiency. Power Bl has also been

introduced which facilitates user generated, agile data
analysis with self-service Bl analytics managed in the
cloud for collaboration and sharing.

In the upcoming year 2019, we aim to automate more
processes by identifying our people’s needs and
coming up with better and effective solutions.
Simplifying some of the many time-consuming
processes and bringing ease to the users is one of our
top priorities. We also plan to explore the latest data
visualization tools so that they help usersin
understanding the data more effectively. We are
confident that 2019 will be a great year for us!
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2018 comes to an end and undoubtedly it was quite a challenging year for the
business considering the market volatility and rapidly changing internal

& external environments.

In spite of the tough challenges business was able to
supply 85 high quality Healthcare SKUs across the
country with an On Time In Full (OTIF) of more than
98%.

The GSK Consumer Healthcare Supply Chain evolved
significantly during 2018 with the formation of a new
energetic Supply Chain Team and the expansion of
Warehousing Network across the country. The
Warehouse Network Optimization project was
successfully implemented with absolutely no business
interruption making our products available closer to our
customers.

For the first time GSK Consumer Healthcare started the
exports of Parodontax toothpastes to Qatar market

which was a great milestone achieved. It not only
supported the Gulf region to resume their supplies but
also gave Pakistan entity a first step in the international
market.

During the uear, Pakistan team was able to sustain the
Level 2 maturity in the Demand Management process
with the Sales Forecast Accuracy of 72%.

As we enter 2019, the focus would be to support the
business with improved infrastructure, extended reach,
cost efficiencies and a simplified operating model. The
Supply chain team with full zeal and excitement look
forward to further improve its contribution in the overall
business performance.
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Quallty Management
System (QMS)

[

Our Quality Management is designed to remain compliant with local
regulations, consistently meeting quality standards for consumers
and for continuous improvement for Company and shareholders.

Trust’, being one of the core aspects in the healthcare industry forms one of the key
pillars of our organization with innovation and performance being next in line.

Ensuring highest level of OMS implementation at each level of our supply chain is our
prime objective. The OMS has been focusing on key areas with some of the major
accomplishments in the past year.

In 2018, we flourished guality culture in the LOC, implemented new artwork management
system and reduced the timeline for artwork approval up to 20 days, which is an
achievement. We managed successful GMP audits for two warehouses without a major
finding. We continued the legacy of zero recallin the market in year 2018 as well. Level 1
was rigorously monitored in the Local Operating Company (LOC) where respective
functions were required to review their performance against benchmarks.

42

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd,



\\..;:" Resource

GSK Priorities & Performance System: Innovation, Performance & Trust

In 2018, we continued to build on our GSK Priorities of
Innovation, Performance and Trust as part of our
commitment to deliver game chanaging business

results. The focus on ensuring that our strategy of 1+3,

(1company and 3 business units), was championed
through strong leadership, employee development
and our continued focus on being a progressive
employer.

Our GSK expectations of Courage, Accountability,
Development and Teamwork re-iterated though our
global #Let's Talk initiatives across GSK Pakistan,
coupled with our values of Patient Focus,
Transparency, Respect and Integrity all form the basis
of ‘Our DNA!, guiding us to be one of the world's most
innovative, best performing and trusted healthcare
companies.

Innovation, coupled with our renewed focus on
“Business First” and ‘Making it Easier’ for our
customers, HR aims to focus on optimizing the
business’ organization design, leveraging the GSK
performance system to drive and develop high quality
leaders and drive the development of critical business
capabilities and skills needed to develop and launch a
pipeline of new products that meet the needs of
patients and consumers.

Performance, continued to be a focal point for
HR, as we focus on enhancing the quality and depth
of talent, especially for critical roles along with
improving their diversity through which we aim to
achieve industry-leading growth by investing
effectively in our business, developing our people and

delivering flawlessly when it comes to business
results.

Trust, will continue to be a key HR pillar,
intertwined across all our performance measures, by
supporting our leadership team in inculcating a culture
of clear communication, trust and openness. We are
committed to building trust through our approach to
engagement and excellent customer experience.

Developing Our People

Our continued commitment to developing and
sustaining our talent pipeline by attracting and
retaining the most talented people is a key success
factor in GSK's outstanding results. Building on our
approach to leadership development, the focus is on
developing our managers to maotivating team
members to create a High-Performance Culture that
leads to game changing business results.

At GSK, we view career development as a bridge
towards building experience and capability instead of
focusing solely on promotion and advancement. As
our global talent network grows stronger and more
widespread across countries including UK, Turkey,
Belgium, Australia, Saudi Arabia, and Singapore we
believe career paths should be flexible and adaptable
to meet the future needs of our business and the
aspirations of our employees.
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Diversity & Inclusion

The year 2018 marked the launch of our Global
Women Leadership Initiative (WLI) across GSK
Pakistan on the International Wormen's Day. The CEO
of UOREAL Pakistan was called as a guest speaker to
brace the occasion. Our Leadership Team fully
supported the initiative and in collaboration with HR
selected the Leads and Co-leads for the WLI forum.
As a first step, the WLI team conducted diversity and
inclusion workshops in the least diverse areas of GSK
Pakistan by engaging renowned external facilitators.
These workshops were a great success and helped
lay the groundwork towards what GSK is trying to
achieve in the long run i.e. a gender balance
workforce, in line with GSK values, These sessions
facilitated in rernoving the unconscious biases,
present in the mindsets of the people related to
diversity and inclusion. The WLI team also connects
with employees regularly to build engagement and
tearnwaork, creating a positive work culture where both
genders feel safe to co-exist.

The initiatives led by WLI were also recognized
externally by the Overseas Investors Chamber of
Commerce and Industry (OICCI), who awarded GSK
Pakistan in the "growing women leaders” category for
2018. We look forward in continuing to create a
positive impact about diversity and inclusion, via WLI
in 2019 and beyond.

Engagement

Al GSK, we see employee engagement, as a means to
strengthen ties at all levels of the organization and
build on our GSK culture. In 2018, HR and the
Leadership Team led the engagement agenda across
all GSK locations and sites. These included our Eid
Milan Breakfasts, Pakistan Independence Day
Celebrations, Annual Milad, as well as various cultural
celebrations that are part of our GSK heritage.

In line with our value of Transparency, the Global GSK
Engagement Survey was rolled out company wide,
allowing employees a chance to put forward their
views on a variety of areas, including our GSK Values
and Priorities. The 2018 GSK Engagement Survey
results reported Employee Engagement levels of
94%, with the highest ever response rate to date,
proves that GSK's strength lies in our ability to create
a lasting bond with our employees and goes to show
that everyone has a role to play in contributing to our
culture.

Performance Management &
Recognition

Our performance system is designed to make
business performance central to what we do,

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.



encourage effective leadership and strategy
deploument. Our new performance management
system is aligned to our 1+3 operating model, focused
on business delivery, employee development and
accountability. Furthermore, in 2018, we extensively
supported the business to achieve their best, ensuring
fairness and rewarding the right people.

In addition, we stressed upon the importance of
following our expectations of Courage, Accountability,
Development and Teamwork in supporting the
performance and development of our workforce and in
the implementation of our people processes such as
hiring, assessment and training. This means that
everyone aligns their objectives with the business and
focuses their energy on driving business performance.
Moreover, we have embedded the individual
performance recognition which will now be based on
business performance, connecting employees to the
key indicators of business success whereas top
performing individuals will be rewarded by the IPT
(Innovation, Performance & Trust) award which is
based on the most impactful performance against
objectives and GSK values and expectations over a
prolonged period. The implementation of our New
Performance Managerment System means that we
celebrate our business wins together, promoting a
‘One Team' concept globally across GSK rather than
limiting it to an individual.

Future Leaders Program

The GSK Pakistan's Future Leaders Program is a key
driver of our talent pipeline, designed to attract,
develop and nurture talented individuals. We aim to
enable them to become our Future Leaders through
our robust program which provides ambitious
individuals with various opportunities to lead GSK in to
the future whilst developing their own long-term
careers. We place immense focus on our values when
we hire future leaders; these are consumer first,
integrity, respect for people and transparency.

Employee Health
& Well Being

At GSK, our purpose to help people do more, feel
better, live longer starts with our employees. In 2018,
we launched our Global Challenge initiative which is a
100-day virtual journey around the world, where
employees complete a series of fun physical activity
challenges. It's a collaborative, fun way to think about
our lifestyle choices and develop healthy habits
together. Our employees from across GSK
participated enthusiastically in the Global Challenge.
It motivated and encouraged them to adopt a healthy
lifestyle and therefore, developing energy and
resilience across the organization.

Moreover, the earlier launch of our Employee Health &
Well Being initiative in 2017 was carried through in
2018, focusing on 3 key areas; understanding your
own health, how to act to protect against illness and
choices you can make to be healthier and enable you
to live well. The initiative includes health screening
services, preventive exams and vaccinations.

GSK is committed to providing workplaces, programs
and facilities that enable employees to understand
and protect their health and make healthy choices -
to feel healthier, happier and energized.
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At GSK Consumer Healthcare, Regulatory Affairs is committed to focus on business
goals and drive key strategic projects. We liaise with our stakeholders to create an
environment based on trust which can strengthen our expectations.

2018 proved to be a great year for GSK Consumer
Healthcare where we were able to receive approvals,
and launch innovations like Voltral Emulgel 2% and
CaC-1000 PLUS Lemon Flavor. We are proud to say
that we are the first Company in history of Pakistan
who secured approval to go on air for our pediatric
range.

Our existing brands are growing uear by year in their
respective categories. We at Regulatory Affairs partner
in the growth of brands and manage all desired
approvals from regulatory bodies in a timely fashion.

We take pride in saying that we play a role in the
success of every brand.

For 2019, we plan to deliver key projects which will
give the business an added competitive advantage. We
are well placed to strengthen our digital presence and
articulate our position in requlatory matters. With new
product innovations in the pipeline, we are well
positioned to become the number one Consumer
Healthcare Company in Pakistan.
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The GSK Legal team is aligned to operate as effective prioritization & operational efficiencies helped
business partners. Legal is committed to delivering transform Legal’s ‘must wins’ into effective
agile and high guality legal and corporate secretarial enterprise-oriented solutions.

services to the Company to foster an integrated and
competitive business in a complex market and with
GSK Values at the heart of each decision.

Going forward, Legal will continue to navigate 2019 as
an agile and synergized team focused on digital
initiatives, smart risk taking, stakeholder knowledge

In 2018, Legal focused on the GSK priorities of management, and simplification to truly embody “One
Innovation, Performance and Trust. Therefore, Team Many Skills”.
simplification, automation of the contracting process,

Company Secretary

Mashal Mohammad is the Company Secretary of GlaxoSmithkline Consumer Healthcare
Pakistan Limited and Senior Legal Manager. She joined GSK in 2015, She graduated from
the University of Bristol and was called to the Bar from Lincoln’s Inn/the Inns of Court
School of Law (City University, London). She is also enrolled as an Advocate of the High
Court. She has over 10 years of diversified work experience as an inhouse and practicing
lawyer.
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) Engaging

N= Stakeholders

GSK Consumer Healthcare recognizes and respects the various roles
that our stakeholders play in helping people fulfill their objectives

by realizing their ideas.

We truly value the relationships that we have
established over decades and strive to strengthen
them through both periodic and regular engagement.
We believe that together we can create a lasting
positive impact on the society around us through the
work that we do.

Our stakeholders include:
Shareholders

GSK has had a history of delivering strong financial
performance year after year. GSK Consumer
Healthcare intends to continue on this path and aims
to provide its shareholders with adequate returns in
the future.

Distributors and suppliers

Our distributors and suppliers are essential partners in
guaranteeing that we deliver only the highest levels of
product quality. We help our suppliers and vendaors
grow their standards of quality management through
perindically held QMS training sessions. Moreover,
our distributors undergo regular QMS audits to ensure
that compromises are not made when it comes to
consistently delivering quality products.

Employees

Our team is considered one of our greatest strengths
and given our strong belief in empowerment and
growth, our employees are trained through local and
international training, coaching and mentoring
programs in order to enable them to reach broader,
better avenues both professionally and personally.

Regulators

We place responsible corporate citizenship at the top
of our priorities and pledge to respect and adhere to
legal requirements and regulations.

Local community

At GSK Consumer Healthcare, we are respectful of
and grateful to the environment in which we operate.
We understand that the people and community we
work with give us the opportunity to achieve our
ambition to become Pakistan’s first Fast Moving
Consumer Healthcare company.
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GSK Jamshoro plant, serving three markets, Pakistan, Vietnam and Philippines,
manufactures and packages consumer healthcare and OTC products.

The site has state of the art facility for manufacturing and packaging of tablets, capsules, syrups / suspension,
creams and gel products. The plant also has dedicated sections for Calcium effervescent (CaC-1000 PLUS) and
chewable tablets (Qalsan-D). This site also manufactures solids and semi solids for Novartis. All products are
manufactured and packed as per cGMP and high standards of Quality systems and assurance as per local and
international standards. The plant complies with NEQS (National Environmental Quality Standards) as per EPA
(Environmental Protection Agency) and SEPA (Sindh Environmental Protection Agencuy).

: Annual Volume : No. of SKUs :
manufactured

| I 1

. wdAe | 66 ]

I Million Packs I i

1 1 ]
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only focus on further strengthening our expert
connections, but the campaign breathed new life into
the brand by cross-medium integration, including TV,
digital, radio and PR, relating to parents’ experiences
of having tough and gentle moments with their
children when it comes to their health.

Going forward, Panadol will continue to work towards
its promise of delivering pain solutions in the form of
innovation and quality, expanding its footprint towards
specific pain indications as continuing to caterto a
wide range of pain sufferers.

Panadol, GSK Consumer Healthcare's flagship brand is
the first choice for pain and fever relief among doctors
and consumers because of its promise of strong
commitment towards excellence in scientific research
and quality. Panadol has now become a household
name in Pakistan, built on a history of trust and
credibility spanning over several decades.

o | GENTLE:
In 2018, Panadol maintained its steady progress by S JERET

sustaining the highest market value share of 46%, in
addition of being the most prescribed brand in Pakistan
by experts in the Analgesics category’.

Panadol range includes Pain, Fever and Cold & Flu
relief products of various strengths and formats and for
all age groups. 2018 was an exciting year for the brand
with the launch of the first ever campaign for Panadol ]
Children range as being tough on fever and gentle on = TOUGH ON FEVER
the child’s tummy; focusing on the brand's efficacy as > = SENTEE N A
well as safety of use. With this campaign we did not

'|MS Data Rx Dec'18
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CaC-1000p,Lus

No. 1Prescribed Calcium Supplement in Pakistan

Priority #1on Expert

CaC-1000 PLUS is the biggest brand in the calcium
category with a value share of 36%? in 2018 driven
by utmost trust of Consumers and Healthcare
Professionals alike. CaC-1000 PLUS is an
effervescent tablet, available in 4 Havors; Orange,
Cola, Lemon and Mango (the only sugar free offering
in the portfolio).

Calcium deficiency is a prevalent issue in Pakistan as
1in 2 women? suffer from this condition. GSK
Consumer Healthcare, being the market leader in the
category, took it as a challenge to build awareness of
this problem amang the masses and in the process of
doing so, the calcium category grew by 12% in
Pakistan. 2018 was the second consecutive year of

< |MS MAT Sales Data, Dec 18
3 National Mutrition Survey, 201

the Calcium Awareness Campaign. After the
award-winning campaign “Strong Bones, Strong
Future” in 2017, the 2018 campaign talked about
building the habit of calcium use in daily life.

CaC-1000 PLUS has strong scientific credentials as it
has double calcium in the form of Calcium Carbonate
and Calcium Lactate Gluconate in an effervescent
formulation. Combined, the quantity of calcium is in
line to support the average daily requirements of an
adult. These factors along with a pleasant taste are
acknowledged by Healthcare Professionals and their
confidence in our brand has resulted in CaC-1000
PLUS being the #1 Prescribed Calcium Supplement in
Pakistan with a prescription share of 25% in 2018.
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SENSODYNE

b E‘SL’* wod

Sensodune, our legacy brand, has made
its own mark in the toothpaste segment.
As a brand Sensodyne has evolved and
innovated not only in terms of product
but also in the way it engages
consumers. Reluing on science, research
and quality, Sensodyne has gained the
trust of Consumers, Shoppers & Experts.

This evolution is evident from our communication which has evolved into a mix of Sensitivity Condition Awareness
complemented by the Consumer-Centric campaign, "Faces of Sensitivity". Direct Consumer Connections through
Checkup activations & partnerships with food festivals, Expert Engagement, In-Store Visibility, PR and Digital
campaigns and Innovations have led to a strong consumer penetration for Sensodyne. This has turned Sensodyne
into a Rs. 1.7 billion brand with a market share of 12.8%" in the Toothpaste Category.

Sensodyne understands that sensitivity pain is a hindrance in enjoying small festivities in life and commits to
enabling consumers in combatting this condition and ultimately do more, feel better and live longer. The Portfolio
includes 7 variants of toothpastes, 4 brushes and a mouthwash - all specially designed to treat sensitivity
alongside their own unique propositions

SENSODYNE

BEAT S
SENSITIVITY S "
PAIN

FAST _

e W W e it

S (e— _
SENSODYNE RAZID3»:

4 Lo et e

“ MAT Dec'18 AC Nielsen Retail Audit
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parodontax

Parodontax is a specialist gum health toothpaste and
is clinically proven to be 4x more effective at
removing the main cause of bleeding gums than a
regular toothpaste.

2018, only the second year since Parodontax was
re-launched, the brand began local production of two
new variants: Original and Extra Fresh.

Gum Health in Pakistan is often neglected by the
general population. Parodontax’s main objective is to
create awareness on Gum Health and Bleeding
Gums and build relevance for Parodontax as a
solution.

Parodontax continued to be on air, with the
3B0-degree campaign, creating awareness on gum
disease and showing bleeding gums as the first sign
of dental concern of weak gums. To support the

MORE EFFECTIVE

ol chann & tweos raily bnushing

% MAT Dec'1B AC Nielsen Retail Audit

DALY PRI DT TOOTaRALTE FOR HlALTHY SOMS & STROmG FITTH
dontax

Helps stop and pravent bleeding gums

communication, the brand was also leveraged on the
growing digital platform, including website, Facebook,
Google, local publishers and videos on YouTube.
Moreover, having a strong relationship with dentists in
the past, GSK leveraged its expert force to re-build
expert cormmunication and recommendation —
prirnarily supported with the sampling of extra fresh.
On the shopper front, Parodontax tools were placed on
shelves, with key message of ‘Leave Bleeding Gums
Behind with Parodontax’, activities in modern trade and
general trade outlets including free trial of Parodontax
Extra Fresh.

Above mentioned efforts resulted in establishing of 1%°
market share through gaining an exponential growth of
150% over the previous year.
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PHYSIOGEL

HYPOALLERGENIC

2018 - Building Momentum

In Pakistan, a lot of the consumers feel that they have
a skin problem, but only a fraction of the consumers
have consulted a Dermatologist for their skin
problems!

Physiogel is one of the strongest, most prescribed and
recommended clinically proven brand in the Skin
Health category, it is hypoallergenic, free from
perfumes, preservatives or colorants. Physiogel with
its BioMimic technology accelerates dry skin repair by
supporting the natural processes of the skin and
nourishes and repairs the moisture barrier even for
those with sensitive skin, leaving it smoother and
visibly healthier. The Portfolio includes 12 variants of
skincare products, including cleanser, lotion, cream,
and shampoo- all specially designed to treat dry and
sensitive skin.

91% agree skin is protected
against recurring dryness®

In 2018, Physiogel owned and dominated the
'Confidence Platform’ with its new Physiogel Confident,
multi-channel campaign featuring its celebrity brand
ambassador, Ayesha Khan, Apart from focusing on the
functional features & benefits of Physiogel's patented
BioMimic technology, the campaign connects
emotionally with its consumers with Ayesha Khan
narrating her own personal story and testifying how
Physiogel has not only transformed her skin over the
years but has also massively boosted her confidence,
greatly empowering her in achieving her dreams and
goals. This campaign highlights the notion as to how

L P i
sy o al phsvet e
=\ s \3 = X
f |
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Fir = "
& Tasted on 150 women after 2 weeks use
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'Physiogel gives the confidence to face the world
without any fear’. Owing to these digital activations,
Physiogel continues to hold its status of being one of
the largest Facebook communities in the GSK World.
Further building the brand equity, shopper and expert
also played a key role. On the shopper front, Physiogel
successfully launched ‘Project Glam’ to enhance its
in-store visibility. Keeping in line with the growing
digital landscape, Physiogel was also the pioneer brand
in GSK Consumer Healthcare Pakistan to own the
e-commerce platform and the first market in the EMEA
region to launch on this channel.

Clinically Tested BE
by Dermatologists | | |

Phuysiogel has always been driven by Dermatologists
owing to its scientific base, and 2018 was the year
where it continued building momentum with our
Experts by increased communication, 3 dedicated team
and initiating new platforms of communication such as
the SMS activation campaign.

The above reasons led to exponential brand growth of
B60% vs. last year, and turned Physiogelinto a Rs. 180
million brand, forecasted to grow at 51% in 2019.
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For the treatment of oily, pimple,
and acne prone skin

Voltral Emuigel

Topical Emulgel for neck, back
and muscular pain

HYDROPHASE AG
Brevoxyl
Benzoyl peroxide BP 4%w/w

For the treatment of mild acne

SpectraBAN

Mon-greasy, water-resistant, hypoallergenic
sunblock that controls sebum and provides
protection from harmful UV rays

A rich, moisturizing cream,
suitable for dry skin including skin
prone to eczema

QALSAN D

Chewable calcium tablets for
strong bones and teeth

Duofilm

For the treatment of warts and corns

The only antacid in the market that helps relieve
heartburn symptoms by effectively beginning
the process in just six seconds

Annual Report 2018
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An!i+allergi:

T-Day

{Levocetirizine Dihydrochloride)

Anti-allergic treatment for sneezing,
blocked nose, itchy
skin rash and itchy watery eyes

For systematic relief of nasal congestion,
rhinitis or cough associated with upper
respiratory track disorders

IODEX

For topical pain segment to provide relief Mutritional food powder clinically proven to
from head, neck, back and muscular pain help children become taller, stronger and
sharper

Hydrozole

Cream

An anti-fungal cream that targets inflammation and
fights the fungi that cause it. Hydrocortisone,
the core ingredient in this product, distinguishes it
from other antifungal products in the market

62 GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd,



A

h__'...' _H__\\....n_.m.__

KEHOLT
_\__.._\.,../__x.._.-




Financial Performance
at a glance

Rupees inmillion 2018 2017
Net Sales 14,875 8,298
Gross Profit 4,340 3101
Operating Profit 1688 1179
Profit Before Tax 1,463 1171
Taxation (388) (464)
Profit after taxation 1,075 707
Dividend per share Rs.* 500 500
Paid-up Capital (in million) 11705 9555
Gross and Operating Profit (Rupees in million) Dividend (Rupees in million)
5000 700
4500 4340 5853
600
4000
. 500 - 4778
3000 400 4
2500
5000 300 -
1500 - 200 4
1000 +
500 100 -
0 0 . .
2018 2017 2018 2017

W Gross profit ™ Operating profit

* Represents final cash dividend @ Rs 5 per share proposed by the Board of Directors subsequent to the year end.
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Rs. 14,875

For the year ended 37 December 2018
Rupees in Million
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Key Performance

Indicators (Ratios)

Bolance Sheet 2018 2017
Assels employed
Fixed Assets - tangible
- property, plant and equipment Rs. in million 2,650 125
Assets - intangible
- Goodwill Rs. in million 128 -
Deferred taxation Rs. in million = 8
Long-term loans and deposits Rs. in million 1 1
Met current assets Rs. in million 1174 2183
Rs. in million 3962 2316
Less: Non-Current Liobilities
Staff retirement benefits - Staff gratuity Rs. in million 38 20
Deferred taxation Rs. in million 80 -
Rs. in million 127 20
Net assets employed Rs. in million 3,835 2,297
Financed by
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital Rs. in million 1171 956
Reserves Rs. in million 2664 1,341
Shareholders’ Equity Rs. in million 3,835 2,297
Turnover ond profil 2018 2017
Met sales Rs. in million 14,875 8,298
Gross profit Rs. in million 4340 310
Operating profit Rs. in million 1,688 117g
Profit before taxation Fs. in million 1463 117
Taxation Rs. in million (388) (464)
Profit after taxation Rs. in million 1,075 707
EBTIDA Rs=. in million 1,899 1,202
Cash Dividend including bonus shares Rs. in million 585 478
Sales peremployee Rs. in thousand 30,990 131,717
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Cashflows 2018 2017
Rupees In Millions

Operating Activities Rs. in million (415) 559
Investing Activities Rs. in miltion (234} i
Financing Activities Fs. in‘million {78} -
Changes in Cash equivalents Rs. in million (727) 531
Cash & equivalents - Year end Rs. in million (884) 1302
Financial Highlights 2018 2017
Cash dividend per share Rupees 50 50
Bonus shares % =
Market value per share - year end Rupees 266.39 324.29
Market value per share - high Rupees 529.00 36500
Market value per share - low Rupees 258.00 10063
Market price to Book value with surplus Times a4 13.49
Market capitalization Rs. in-million 3.z 30,986
Profitability Ratios 2018 2017
Profit before tax ratio % 9.83 14N
Gross Yield on Earning Assets % 764 460
Gross Spread ratio Times 025 D23
Cost / Income ratio Times 062 0.64
Return on Equity % 2802 30.77
Return on Capital employed % 42 81 50.90
Gross Profit ratio % 2918 3737
Net Profit to Sales % 7.22 8.52
EBITDA Margin to Sales % 1277 14.48
Operating leverage ratio Times 07 07
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Return on Equity (%)
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Investment/Market Ratios 2018 2017
Earnings per share (EPS) Rupees 918 738
Price Earnings ratio Times 29.02 43.88
Price to Book ratio Times 841 13.49
Dividend Yield ratio % 188 154
Dividend Payout ratio Times 054 0.68
Dividend Cover ratio Times 1.84 148
Break-up Value per share Rupees 3276 24.04
Capital Structure Ratios 2018 2017
Earning assets to total assets ratio Yo 888 58.21
Met assets per share Times 3276 24.04
Debt to Equity ratio Times 0.42

Interest Cover ratio Times nie 27103
Liquidity Ratios 2018 2017
Current ratio Times 129 233
Cluick / Acid test ratio Times 0.72 183
Cash to Current Liabilities Times 01g 079
Cash How from Operations to Sales % (2.79) 574
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Activity / Turnover Ratios 2018 2017
Inventory turnover ratio Times 6.8 75
No. of Days in inventory Days 54 49
Debtor turnover ratio Times 290 283
Mo. of Days in receivables Days 13 13
Creditor turnover ratio Times 172 14.3
Mo. of Days in Creditors Daus 22 26
Total Assets turnover ratio Times 187 210
Fixed Assets turnover ratio Times 5.6 B6.5
Operating Cycle Days 46 36
Current and Quick Ratio (Number of Times)
233
25
2 183
15 m 2018
14 0.75 = 20177
05
8] .
Current Ratio Quick Ratio
Number of Days in Receivables and Number of Days in Inventory
80 .
49
50
48 B Number of days
30 in receivables
B Number of days
%3 13 in inventory
10 -
0- T
2018 2017
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Direct Cash

Flow Statement

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

2018 2017
Rupees

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash receipts from customers 14,764,941,373 8,316,824935
Cash paid to suppliers / service providers (12,981,215,609) (7203,676,714)
Cash paid to employees (1.052,079,619) (225,853,203)
Payment of indirect taxes and other statutory duties (239,089,563) (51,643157)
Financial charges paid (139,780,490) (154,139)
Staff retirement benefits paid (23,960,'60) (7492,213)
Income taxes paid (743,788,803) (268,655,682)
Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities (414,972,971) 559,349,827
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Fixed capital expenditure (314,785,896) (28,387.509)
Proceeds from sale of operating assets 8,556,401 13,220,306
Return received 72,038,125 87,028,840
Net cash (used in) / generated from investing activities (234,193,370) 71,862,237
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividend paid (77,903,044) -
Met (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (727.069,385) 631,212,064
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 1,.301,554,423 670,342,359
Met cash and cash equivalents transferred from GSK OTC (1.458,822,362) -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year (884,337,324) 1,.301,554,423
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Horizontal

Analysis

Vertical

Analysis

Baolance Sheet Anolysis 2018 2017 Bolonce Sheet Analysis 2018 2017
Share Capital and Reserves 670 439 Share Capital and Reserves 482 581
Mon Current Liabilities 552.0 1285  Non Current Liabilities 16 05
Current Liabilities 143.8 303  Current Liabitities 50.2 414
Total Equity and Liabilities 101.2 38.2  Total Equity and Liabilities 100.0 100.0
Non Current Assets 19837  (10.6)  Non Current Assets 351 34
Current Assets 352 409  Cument Assets 649 966
Total Assets 101.2 382  Total Assets 100.0 100.0
Profit and Loss Analysis 2018 2017 Profit and Loss Analysis 2018 2017
Met sales 793 544  Netsales 100.0 1000
Cost of sales 1027 344 Costof sales (708) (B628)
(Gross profit 3898 105.6  Gross profit 292 374
Selling, marketing and distribution Selling, marketing and distribution

EXpenses 305 851 expenses (16.0) (22.0)
Administrative expenses 497 46.2  Administrative expenses (1.9) (2.3)
Other operating expenses 438 358  Other operating expenses (09} (1
Other operating income (22.0) (B58) Otheroperating income 10 22
Operating profit 43.2 375  Operating profit 1.4 14.2
Financialcharges 26761 4232  Financial charges (1.5) {01)
Profit before taxation 249 36.8  Profit before taxation 2.8 141
Taxation (16.4) 494  Taxation (26) (5.6)
Prafit after taxation 52.0 296  Profit after taxation ?.E' _35_
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Statement of Value Added
and its Distribution

2018 2017
Rs. 000 o Rs, 000 %

Revenue Generated
Total revenue 15,592,219 1000 8,964,312 1000
Revenue distributed
Bought-in -materials and Services 9,842,389 631 5191856 579
Selling, Marketing and Distribution Expenses 2104925 135 1682861 188
Administrative Expenses and Financial Charges 414,601 27 102,104 1.2
Income tax 388140 25 464,023 ha
Worker's funds and Central research fund 127188 08 88,464 1.0
Sales tax 575,589 37 484,964 54
To Government 1,090,927 70 1,037,451 16
Salaries,Wages and other benefits 1,064,825 6.8 238,224 26
To Employees 1,064,825 6.8 236,224 28
Donations Donation During the year - - -
To Society Donation During the year - - - -
Cash dividend per share Cash Dividend Excluding Bonus Shares 585,273 38 477751 53
To Shareholders Cash Dividend Excluding Bonus Shares 585,273 38 477,751 5.3
Retained in the Business 489,279 31 229,065 26

15,592,212 100.0 8,964,312 100.0

* Represents final cash dividend @ Rs 5 per share proposed by the Board of Directors subsequent to the year end.

= B Bought-in-material and services
?.ﬂ D

38 Selling, Marketing and distribution Expenses
Administrative expenses and Financial charges
To Government

To Employees

To Society

To Shareholders

Rietained in the business

EEEEER
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Statement of Compliance
with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Limited
Year ending December 31, 2018

The companuy has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the fallowing manner;
1. The total number of Directors are seven (7) as per the following:
a) Male: 5
b) Female: .

2. The composition of the Board is as follows:

Category Name
Independent Directors *  Mr. Muhammad Zindah Moin Mohajir
* Syed Anwar Mahmood

Executive Directors = Mr. Sohail Matin
*  Mr. Talal Javed Ahmed

Mon-Executive Directors + Ms, Annelize Roberts
* Ms. Emine Tasci Kaya
» Syed Azeem Abbas Nagvi

3. The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a Director on more than five listed companies, including this
company lexcluding the listed subsidiaries of listed holding cormpanies where applicable),

4. The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to disseminate it
throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the company.
A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which they were approved or amended has
been maintained,

6. Allthe powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by
Board/shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations.

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and in her absence, by a Director elected by the Board for
the purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of the Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency,
recording and circulating minutes of the Meetings of the Board.

8. The Board of Directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of Directors in accordance with
the Act and these Regulations.

9. The Board has arranged Directars’ Training Prograrn for the following:
a) Talal Javed Ahmed - Chief Financial Officer

10. The Board has approved the appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, including their
remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations.

1. The CFO and CED duly endorsed the financial statements befare approval of the Board.
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12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a) Audit Committee

i Mr. Moin Mohajir - Chairman

ii. Syed Anwar Mahmood

iii. Syed Azeem Abbas Nagvi

i Ms. Varisha Shahid - Secretary
b) HR and Remuneration Committee

i. Syed Anwar Mahmood - Chairman

ii. Mr. Sohail Matin

iii. Syed Azeem Abbas Nagvi

iv. Mr. Ahmad Ali Zia (2018) replaced by Ms. Tania Zahid (Secretary)
c) Risk Management Committee

i All members of the RMCE — Leadership Team of GSK CHC Pakistan

13, The Terms of Reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the committee for
compliance.

14. The frequency of the meetings (quarterly/half yearly/yearly) of the committees were as per following:

a) Audit Committes Quarterly
b) HR and Remuneration Committee st Quarter and 4th Quarter
c) Risk Management Committee Quarterly

15. The Board has outsourced the internal audit function to Ernst & Young Ford Rhodes, who are considered suitably qualified
and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the company.

16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the quality
control review program of the ICAP, and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they or any of the partners of
the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the company and that the firm and all its partners are in
compliance with International Federation of Accountants {IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP.

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services except in
accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory reguirement and the auditors have confirmed that they
have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

18. We confirm that all other requirements of the Regulations have been complied with.

Karachi Annelize Roberts
March 18, 2019 ChairPerson
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REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS ON STATEMENT OF
COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To the members of GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2017

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2017 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan
Limnited {the Company) for the year ended December 31, 2018 in accordance with the requirernents of regulation 40 of the
Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Qur responsibility is
to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company'’s compliance with the provisions of the
Regulations and report If it does not and to highlight anu non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review
is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to
comply with the Reqgulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and internal
control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether
the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and contrals or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of
such internal contrals, the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit
Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions and also ensure
compliance with the requirements of section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017. We are only required and have ensured
compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out procedures to assess and determine the Company's
process for identification of related parties and that whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm’s length
price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance does

not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained in the
Reqgulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended December 31, 2018,

-_} . L]
clj( (6:'He Howaf Aot
[
i
Chartered Accountants

Place: Karachi
Date: March 30, 2019
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AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS

To the members of GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of GlaxoSmithiline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Limited (the
Companuy), which comprise the staterent of financial position as at December 31, 2018, and the statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatary
infarmation, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, ta the best of our knowledge
and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our infarmation and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of financial
position, statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement
of cash Hows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so
required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at December 31, 2018 and of the
profit and other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Qur
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan {the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial

statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters,
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S. No Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter
& Scheme of arrangement for merger In response to this matter, we performed the
following procedures:
As disclosed in note 1.3 to the financial statements,
an associated undertaking namely GlaxeSmithKline - Obtained an understanding of the merger
OTC (Private) Limited (GSK OTC) was, during the process;
year, merged with and into the Company after the
shareholders and the Sindh High Court (the Court) - Dbtained and reviewed minutes of meetings of
approved and sanctioned the scheme respectively. the Board of Directors (the Board) and the
shareholders' whereby scheme of merger was
The Company had obtained the services of approved together with supporting documents;
consultants and decided share swap ratio of
2110 shares (i.e., 2.1 shares of the Company - Dbtained and reviewed the approved scheme
were issued for every 10 shares of GSK OTC). fited with the Court and the order issued by the
Management applied the predecessor accounting Court approving the scheme;
to account for the merger and, as a result, merger
reserve of Rs. 728.73 million was recognized in the - Dbtained confirmation from the legal counsel of
books of the Companuy. the Company in respect of effectiveness of the
scheme, which was also reviewed by our legal
We considered the merger as a key audit matter expert; and
considering its significant impact on the operations
and financial statements of the Company. - Checked appropriateness of disclosures made in
the financial statements.
2, Impairment assessment of intangible In response to this matter, we performed the

asset - goodwill

As disclosed in note 5 to the financial statements, the
Company has an intangible assetin the form of
goodwill having carrying value of Rs. 127.67 million
at the year-end.

The goodwill was recorded as result of an acquisition
of business from Novartis Pakistan Private Limited
{NPPL) by the merged entity (GSK OTC) in year
2018,

As per the approved accounting and reperting
standards as applicable in Pakistan, the Company is
required to, at least annuatly, perform impairment
assessment of goodwill.

For performing impairment assessment,
management has allocated goodwill to appropriate
cash generating units ("CGUs"). The recoverable
amount of the underlying CGUs is supparted by
value-in-use calculations, which are based on future
discounted cash flows. Management

following procedures:

- Obtained understanding of management’s
process over the impairment assessment of
goodwill;

- Dbtained management's future cash flow
farecasts and tested arithmetical accuracy of
underlying value-in-use calculations;

- Assessed the reasonableness of key assumptions
used in the calcutations, comprising sales growth
rates, gross profit margin, net profit margin,
terminal growth rate and discount rates. When
assessing these key assumptions, we discussed
them with management to understand and
evaluate management's basis for determining the
assumptions, and compared them to econormic
growth forecasts from available external sources.
We also engaged our internal expert to assist us
in assessing the reasonableness of the key
assumptions used by management; and
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S.No Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter
concluded that goodwill was not impaired as of - Performed sensitivity analysis arcund some
December 31, 2018. assumptions, to ascertain that selected adverse
changes to discount rate would not cause the
We focused on this area as the assessments made carrying amount of goodwill to exceed the
by management involved significant estimates and recoverable amount.
judgements, including sales growth rates, net profit
margin and terminal growth rates used to estimate
future cash flows and discount rates applied to these
forecasted future cash Flows of the underlying CGUs.
These estimates and judgements may be affected by
unexpected changes in future market or economic
conditions or discount rates applied.
3 Waluation of inventories In this respect, we performed the following audit

Refer to note 7 to the financial statements.

As at December 31, 2018, the Company's carrying
amount of inventories amounts ta Rs. 2,231, 36
rrillion.

We identified valuation of inventaries as a key audit
matter as it involves significant management
judgement with respect to actualization of standard
costs, determination of net realizable values, and
determination of obsolescence of stock.,

procedures:

- DObtained an understanding of procedures followed
by the Company with respect to valuation of
inventories;

- Assessed appropriateness of the Company's
valuation policy as per the requirements of the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan;

- On a sample basis, verified supporting documents
for purchases of inventory and the production cost;

- Obtained working of variances recorded by
management and tested the amounts, which were
incurred and retained to actualize the standard cost
of inventory at the year-end. While performing such
procedures, we identified certain differences, which
were communicated to management and
management accordingly incorporated impacts in
the financial statements.

- Obtained an understanding and assessed
reasonableness of the management's process for
the determination of net realizable value (NRV) and
the key estimates adopted, including future selling
prices, future costs to complete and costs necessary
to make the sales and their basis;

- Compared the NRV, on a sample basis, to the
carrying value of inventory to assess whether any
adjustments were required to the carrying values of
inventories in accordance with the palicy; and

- Tested provision recorded for obsolete stock to
ensure that whether it was as per the policy of the
Companuy.
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Infarmation Other than the financial statements and the Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2018, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that thereisa
material misstatemnent of this other information, we have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of the Companies Act, 2017 (XX of 2017)
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary o enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from materal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process,
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with [SAs as applicable in Pakistan will
always detect a material misstaterment when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1ISAs as applicable in Fakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from errar, as fraud may invalve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control,

« (Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that mauy cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion, Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial staternents, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding

independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that mauy reasonably be thought to bear on

owr independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in

the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters

in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter orwhen, in extremely rare

circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse conseguences of

doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b} staterment of financial position, the staterment of profit or loss and ather comprehensive income, the statement of changes
in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the
Companies Act, 2017 (XX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns,

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the Companu's
business; and

d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Usher Ordinance, 1980 (XVIll of 1280), was deducted by the Company
and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance.

Other matter

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2017 were audited by another firm of chartered
accountants who issued an unmodified opinion dated February 23, 2018 thereon,

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Naresh Kumar.

(%e (o4 M L
Chartered Accountants

Place: Karachi
Date: March 30, 2019
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Statement Of
Financial Position

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2018

2018 2017
MNote ——— Rupees

ASSETS
MNon-current assels
Property, plant and equipment 4 2649778094 12471961
Intangible 5 127674000 -
Deferred taxation 18 - 8,236,058
Long-term loans to employees & 7360796 854,322
Long-term depasits 3,380,000 -

2,788,202.890 133,810,051
Current assets
Stores and spares 48,000,000 -
Inventaories 7 2231361076 B21,918.543
Trade debts 8 754862 976 2NM,293.332
Loans and advances g 261,832 746 1224827742
Trade deposits and prepayments 10 77485540 521323
Interest accrued ' - 20843727
Refunds due from Government 1 107.339973 100,970,552
Other receivables 12 614,158,713 26,316,205
Taxation - payments less provision 363570251 -
Investment at amortised cost 13 - 198,542 857
Bank balances 14 707,442,531 103,011,566

566,053,806 3,818,956,841
Total assets 7.954,256,696 3,953,766,892
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital and reserves
Share capital 15 1170,545,080 955,501,830
Reserves 16 2664,440,057 1,341331,243

3,834,985,137 2,296,833,073
Liabilities
MNon-current labilities
Staff retirement benefits i 37635450 18,531,078
Daferred taxation 18 89,705,256 -
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 19 1,856,690,220 1461982884
Running finance under mark-up arrangemeant 20 1,501,779.855 -
Accrued mark-up 436128907 -
Provision for severance 21 = -
Unpaid dividend 22 398847871 -
Taxation - provision less payments - 175,419,857

3991930853 163740274
Total liabilities 419271559 1656933819
Total equity and liabilities 7,954,256,696 3,953,766,892
Contingencies and commitments 23

The annexed notes 1to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements. .
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Statement Of Profit Or Loss And
Other Comprehensive Income

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

2018 2017

MNote ——  Rupees
Met sales 24 14,875,267,507 B 208142426
Cost of sales 25 (10,535,195,394) (5,196,305,515)
Gross profit 4,340,072.113 3,101,236,91
Selling, marketing and distribution expenses 26 (2.376,943,429) (1.822,036,673)
Administrative expenses 27 (288,796,048) (192,969,307)
Other operating expenses 28 (127,187,769) (88,463,777)
Other income 29 141,362,334 181,205,422
Operating profit 1,688,497,201 1.178,972,576
Financial charges 30 (225,804,849) (8133,963)
Profit before taxation 1462692 352 11708388613
Taxation 31 (388,140,409) (464,022,840)
Profit after taxation 1,074,551,943 706,815,773
Other comprehensive loss
terns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Remeasurement of staff retirement benefits (3,359147) (9,370132)
Impact of deferred tax 940,958 || 281,040
Other comprehensive Loss for the year (2.418183) h {E,SSE,DQE}I
Total comprehensive income 1.072,133,760 700,256,681
Earnings per share 32 Rs. 918 Rs.7.39

The annexed notes 1to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement Of

Changes In Equity

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Rupees

Capitol Reserves

Fevenue Reserve

Reserve
Reser;e aﬁsing arising :;
under the amalgamation
ESI;I;';{:I Scheme of under the Umpp;;?ﬂdaled Total
Arrangement - Scheme of Ll
note 1.1 Merger - note
13
Balance as at January 01, 2017 955,501,830 101,913,533 - 539161029 1596576392
Total comprehensive income for the year
ended December 31, 2017
Profit after taxation for the year ended
December 31, 2017 - - JOBRBIS773 706,815,773
Other comprehensive loss for the year
ended December 31, 2017 {E,ESQ,GQE}F (6,559.092)
700256 681 F00.256,681
Balance as at December 31, 2017 955,501,830 101,913,533 - 1239417710 2,296,833073
Transactions with owners
Final dividend for the year ended
December 31, 2017 @ Rs, 5 per share - - - (477,750,915) (477.750,915)
Issue of shares pursuant to amalgamation
under the Scheme of Merger (note 15) 215,043,250 - - 215,043,250
Reserve arising on amalgamation .
under the Scheme of Merger (note 1.3} -| | 728725969 -|| 728725969
2_15.1343,250 - 728725968 (477 750,915) 466,018,304
Total comprehensive income for the
year ended December 31, 2018
Profit after taxation for the year ended
December 31, 2018 - || 1074551943 | | 1074551243
Other comprehensive loss for the year
ended December 31, 2018 # = I2.418,183}t {2.418183)
= 107233760 1072133760
Balance as at December 21, 2018 1170,545,080 101,913,533 728,725969 1833800555 3,834,985)137

The annexed notes 1to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement O
Cash Flows

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

2018 2017
MNote Rupees
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from operations 33 494,397 436 835713,297
Staff retirernent benefits paid (23.960160) (7.492,213)
Interest paid (139,780,490) =
Income taxes paid (743,788,903) (268,655682)
Increase in long-term loans to emplouees (1,840,854) (215,575}
Met cash (used in} / generated from operating activities (414,972,871) 559,349,827
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Fixed capital expenditure (314,785,896) (28,387,509)
Proceeds from sale of operating assets 8,556,401 13,220,806
Return received 72,036,125 87,028,840
Net cash (used in) / generated from investing activities (234,193,370) 71,862,237
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid 35 (77.903,044) -
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivaients (727,069,385) 631,212,064
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 1,301.554,423 670,342,359
Met cash and cash equivalents transferred from GSK OTC 13 1,458,822 362) -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 34 (8E84,337.324) 1,301,554,423
The annexed notes 1to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements,
e~ W LT
Chief Financial Officer Director Chief Executive Officer
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

. THECOMPANY ANDITS OPERATIONS

1.1 GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan as a public
unlisted company under the provisions of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017) on March
31, 2015 principally to effect the demerger of Consumer Healthcare business of GlaxoSmithKline Pakistan Limited (GSK
Pakistan) under a Scheme of Arrangement {the Scheme) which was approved by the Honourable High Court of Sindh (SHC)
and its order was submitted to the Registrar of Companies on April 01, 2016. The Company is a subsidiary of GlaxoSmith-
Kline Consumer Healthcare BV, The ultimate parent of the Companuy is GlaxoSmithKline plc, UK. The Company is engaged
in manufacturing, marketing and sale of consumer healthcare products. The Company was listed at the Pakistan Stock
Exchange Limited since March 22, 2017, The registered office of the Company is situated at 35-Dockyard Road, West
Wharf, Karachi,

1.2 Due to the pending transfer of marketing authorisations and certain permissions for Over the Counter (OTC) products of
the Company with Drug Regulatory Authority of Pakistan (DRAP), GSK Pakistan, for and on behalf of the Company is
engaged in the procurement, manufacturing, marketing and managing the related inventory and receivable balances
pertaining to such products against a service fee charged by GSK Pakistan.

1.3 Merger of GloxoSmithKline OTC (Private) Limited with and into the Company

1.3.1The Board of Directors (the Board) of the Company in its meeting held on June 05, 2018, approved the scheme of
arrangerment for merger by way of amalgamation (the Scheme of Merger), prepared under the provisions of section 279 to
283 of the Companies Act, 2017, of GlaxoSmithKline OTC {Private) Limited (GSK OTC), a wholly owned subsidiary of
GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare BV, with and into the Company. The Scheme of Merger was approved through a
special resolution passed by shareholders in the extra-ordinary general meeting of the Company held on Octaber 19, 2018,
The Scheme of Merger was sanctioned by SHC vide its order dated December 12, 2018. Drug Regulatory Authority of
Pakistan (DRAP) vide its letter no. F.2-4/88-Lic (Vol-1IV) dated March 07, 2013 has also communicated to the Company
that the Central Licensing Board in its 269th meeting held on February 26, 2019 has considered and endorsed the change
of title of GlaxoSmithKline OTC (Private) Limited to GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Limited.

Pursuant to this sanction, the entire business of GSK OTC including its properties, assets, liabilities, licenses and the rights
and-obligations have been transferred and vested into the Company with effect from the effective date, as mentioned in the
Scheme of Merger, i.e, January 01, 2018, Hence, GSK OTC stood merged with and into the Company with effect from
January 01, 2018. Further, as per the Scheme of Merger, the Company also issued 21,504,325 fully paid ordinary shares of
Rs. 10 each to the shareholders of GSK OTC having aggregate face value of Rs. 215.04 million. These shares rank pari
passu with the existing shares of the Company. The Company had obtained the services of consultants and decided on
share swap ratio of 2110 shares (i.e., 2.1 shares of the Company were issued for every 10 shares of GSK OTC). The valua-
tions of the Company and GSK OTC were carried out under discounted cash flow method and market value approach based
on earning multiples at cut-off date of December 31, 2017, and share swap ratio was calculated based on average of values
arrived at under both the valuation technigues,

The merger has been accounted for in the books of the Company using predecessor's accounting method as it was a
business combination of entities under commaon control and therefore scoped out of IFRS-3 'Business Combinations’, The
net assets of GSK OTC have been incorporated at their net carrying amount in the books of the Company as on January 1,
2018 and the difference between value of the net assets acquired and shares as issued above has been carried in the equity
under the head "Reserve arising on amalgamation under the Scheme of Merger”, Further, the merged entities’ results and
statement of financial position have been incorporated prospectively from the date on which the merger occurred. Conse-
quently, these financial staternents do not reflect the results of the merged entities for the period before the transaction
occurred and the corresponding amounts for the previous year presented have not been restated, and, therefore, are not
comparable. However, a break-up of current year results of GSK OTC and the Company has been given in note 1.3.4 for
understanding purposes. Further, the transaction has been considered as non-cash for the purpose of preparation of
statement of cash flows.

1.3.2 As detailed in note 1.3, following are the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities transferred from GSK OTC pursuant
ta the Scheme of Merger.
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GSK OTC
As at December

31, 2017
Note Rupees

ASSETS
Fixed assets 2,427.050,804
Intangible 127,674,000
Long-terrm loans 4665620
Long-term deposits 3,390,000
Stores and spares 28468973
Inventaries 116,522,166
Trade debts 339,249,565
Loans and advances 69,251,275
Trade deposits and prepayments 12,826,956
Taxation - payments less provision 146,853,620
Bank balance* 3,350,794
Total Asset - A 4,279403,773
LIABILITIES
Stalff retirement benefits 10,437139
Deferred taxation 62,494,278
Trade and other payables 755688775
Accrued mark-up 38397172
Loan from GlaxoSmithkKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Limited 1,000,000,000
Running finance under mark-up arrangemant* 1462173156
Provisions 5443034
Total Liabilities - B 3,335,634,554
MET ASSET ACQUIRED (A - B) 943,769,219
LESS: ISSUE OF SHARES PURSUANT TO AMALGAMATION LINDER THE SCHEME OF MERGER
Ordinary shares issued 2,401,548
Ordinary shares required to be issued

against subscription money against right issue** 100,000,000
Total number of shares of GSK OTC 102,401,548
Ordinary shares of the Company to be issued

pursuant to amalgamation 21,504,325
** This represents advance given by GlaxaSmithKline Consumer Heolthcare BV, to GSK OTC against issue of
shares, which were pending as ot December 31, 2017 and at the date of the order of SHC.
Issue of shares pursuant to amalgamation under the Scheme of Merger 1.33 215,043,250
Reserve arising on amalgamation under the Scheme of Merger 728,725,969

* These have been considered as cash and cash equivalents transferred from GSK OTC in statement of cash flows.

1.3.3 This represents the amount of share capital issued as a consideration for net asset acquired due to amalgamation.
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1.2.4 As detailed in note 1.3.1, the following are the individual current uear results of operations of the Company and GSK OTC:
For the year ended December 31, 2018

The Company GSK OTC Total
Rupees

Net sales 8,799,695,644 6,075,571.863 14,875,267,507
Cost of sales (5,739,564,363) (4795631031 (10,535,135,394)
Gross profit 3,060,131,281 279,840,832 4340072113
Selling, marketing and

distribution expenses {1,9098,883178) (467050,251) (2,376,943 429)
Administrative expenses (245,317.223) (43,478,825) (288,796,048)
Other operating expenses (87651038) (39,546,731 (127197.769)
Other income 127.753147 13,609,187 141,362,334
Operating profit 945,022 989 743474212 1,688.497.201
Financial charges (23,406,291 (202,398,558) (225,804.849)
Profit before taxation* 921,616,698 541,075,654 1462,692,352

* Intra-company transactions have been eliminated.

1.4 Summuary of significant tronsoctions ond events occurred during the year

The Company's financial position and performance was particularly affected by below significant transaction and event

occurred during the year;

- Merger of GSK OTC with and into the Company with effect from January 01, 2018 under the Scheme of Merger
{refer note 1.3)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Stotement of complionce

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicablein

Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASE) and
Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFASs) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP), as
notified under the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act); and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Act,

Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Act differ with the requirernents of IFRSs, the provisions of and
directives issued under the Act have been followed.

The Act was enacted on May 30, 2017, and came into force at once. Subsequently, the Securities and Exchange Commission
of Pakistan {the SECP) notified through Circular no. 23 of 2017 that companies whose financial year closes on or before
December 31, 2017 shall prepare their financial statements in accordance with the provisions of the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984, Therefore, the Company has considered the requirements of the Act in the preparation of these financial
staterments in the current year.

The Act has also brought certain changes with regard to the preparation and presentation of these financial statements. These
changes, amongst others, included change in nomenclature of primary staterments. Further, the disclosure requirements
contained in the fourth schedule of the Act have been revised, resulting in elimination of duplicative disclosure with the IFRSs
disclosure requirements and incorporation of additional amended disclosures including, but not limited to, particulars of
immovable assets of the Company, management assessment of sufficiency of tax provision in the financial statements,
change in threshold for identification of executives, additional disclosure requirements for related parties ete.
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2.2 Basis of measuremen
These financial statements have been prepared under the *historical cost convention, except as otherwise disclosed in the
accounting policies below,

2.3 Functionol ond presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the Company operates. These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees which is the Company's functional and
presentation currency. All financial information presented in Pakistani Rupees has been rounded off to the nearest rupee.

24 Criticol occounling estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Company's accounting policies. The matters involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant which have been disclosed in the relevant notes to the financial statements
are:

i} Intangibles (note 3.2 & 5}

i) Provision for retirement benefits (note 3.9 & 17)

iy Depreciation and impairment of non-current assets (note 3.1 & 3.18)
iv) Pravision for obsolete and slow moving stock (note 3.4 & 7)

v) Allowance for impairment of trade debts (note 2.5 & 8)

vi) Taxation {note 319 & 31)

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which form the basis of making the judgments about the carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The
estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods,

2.5 Amendments lo published approved occounting stondards thot are effective for / early odopted during the yeor ended
December 31, 2018

2.5.1 Chonges in occounting policles due to eorly odoption of certafn stondords

The Company early adopted IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments’ and IFRS 15 'Revenue from contracts with custorners' from
January 01, 2018. Consequently, the following changes in accounting policies have taken place effective from January 01,
2me:

(o) IFRS 9 - Financiol Instruments

IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments {IFRS 9) replaced the majority of requirement of IAS 39 - Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement (IAS 39) and covers the classification, measurement and de-recognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities. It requires all fair value moverments on equity investments to be recognised either in the profit or loss or in other
comprehensive income, on a case-by-case basis, and also introduced a new impairment model for financial assets based on
expected losses rather than incurred losses and provides a new hedge accounting model.

In respect of retrospective application of IFRS 9, the Company has adopted modified retrospective approach as permitted by
this standard, according to which the Company is not required to restate the prior year results, There is no material impact of
adoption of IFRS S on opening equity of the Companuy.

The impact of the adoption of IFRS 9 has been in the following areas:

() Clossiftcation and measurement of financial assets and financial liabitities

IFRS 9 largely retains the existing reguirements of 1AS 39 for the classification and measurement of financial liabilities.
However, it replaces the previous IAS 39 categories for financial assets i.e. loans and receivables, fair value through profit or
loss (FVTPL), available for sale and held to maturity with the categories such as amortised cost, fair value through profit or
loss (FVTPL) and fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCH).

There is no significant impact of IFRS 9 on the classification and measurement of financial assets for the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2018 other than that loans and receivables and held to maturity investments are classified under the category of
amortised cost. Under IFRS 9, the classification of financial assets is based on the ohjective of the entity's business maodel
that is the Company's objective is to hold assets only to collect cash flows, or to collect cash Hows and to selt {"the Business
Madel test") and the contractual cash flows of an asset give rise to payments on specified dates that are solely payments of
principal and interest (*SPPI") on the principal amount cutstanding ("the SPPI test”).
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{ify Hedge occounting
IFRS 9 requires that hedge accounting relationships are aligned with its risk management objectives and strategy and to apply
a more qualitative and forward-looking approach to assessing hedge effectiveness:

There is no impact of the said change on these financial statements as there is no hedge activity carried on by the Company
during the years ended December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2018,

{iii) Impoirment of finoncial assets

IFRS 2 replaces the ‘incurred loss’ model of 1AS 39 with an "expected credit loss’ (ECL) model. The new impairment model
applies to financial assets measured at amortised cost, contract assets and debt investments at FVTOCH, but not to invest-
ments in equity instruments, Under IFRS 9, credit losses are recognised earlier than under [AS 39,

Under IFRS 9, loss allowances are measured on either of the following bases:

= 12-month ECLs: these are ECLs that result from possible default events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument.

The Company has elected to measure provision against financial assets on the basis of lifetime ECLs.

Life time ECL is only recognised if the credit risk at the reporting date has increased significantly relative to the credit risk at
initial recognition. Further, the Company considers the impact of forward looking information (such Company's internal factors
and economic environment of the country of customers) on ECLs.

Measurement of ECLs
ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls
(i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

Presentotion of Impairment
Provision against financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets.

Impact of the new impairment model

For assets within the scope of the IFRS 9 impairment model, impairment losses are generally expected to increase and
become more volatile. The Company has determined that the application of IFRS 9's impairment requirements at January 01,
2018 does not have a material impact on provision for doubtful debts measured under 1AS 39,

(b} IFRS 15 - Revenue from controcts with customers

IFRS 15 - Revenue from contracts with customers (IFRS 15) replaced IAS 18 - Revenue, IAS 11 - Construction Contracts, IFRIC
13 - Customer Loyalty Programmes, IFRIC 15 - Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate, IFRIC 18 - Transfers of Assets
from Customers and SIC 31- Revenue - Barter Transactions involving Advertising Services. IFRS 15 provides a single, princi-
ple-based approach to the recognition of revenue from all contracts with customers and focuses on the identification of
performance obligations in a contract and requires revenue to be recognised when or as those performance obligations in a
contract are satisfled. The Company has early adopted IFRS 15 by appluing the modified retrospective approach according to
which the Company is not required to restate the prior year results. However, the adoption of IFRS 15 does not have any
impact on the reported revenue of the Company for the years ended December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2018,

2.5.2 Standords, interpretotions and amendments (o published opproved occounting stondards that become effective

during the year

Certain amendments and interpretations became effective that are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after

January 01, 2018. However, these are not relevant for the Company's financial staterments except for the following amend-

ments which have not materially impacted the financial reporting of the Company:

- Amendments to IFRS 2 'Share-based Payment’: Clarification of the classification and measurement of share-based
payment transactions.

Certain annual improvements have also been made to a number of IFRSs, which do not have significant impact on the financial
reporting of the Company, and therefore, have not been detailed here.
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The Companies Act, 2017 has also brought certain changes with regard to preparation and presentation of financial statements
which have been disclosed in note 2.1 of these financial statements.

2.5.3 New occounting standords ond IFRS interpretotions that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for accounting periods, beginning on or after the date
mentioned against each of them, and are relevant to the Company. Management is in the process of assessing their impact on

the financial reporting of the Company: Effective from accounting period
beginning on or ofter

- IFRS16 'Leases’' January 01, 2019

- Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments’ Prepayment features
with negative compensation January 01, 2019

- Amendments to 1AS 19 ‘Employee Benefits', Plan amendment, curtailment
or settlement January 01, 2019

- IFRIC 23 'Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments' clarifies the accounting
treatment in relation to determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases,
unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty
over income tax treatments under 1A5 12 'Income Taxes', January 01, 2019

= Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle amendments to:
i} IFRS 3 Business Combinations:
i) IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements;
i} 1AS12 Income Taxes; and
iv) 1AS 23 Borrowing Costs January 01, 2019

= Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framewaork in IFRS Standards January 01, 2020

- Amendments to IFRS 3 'Business Combinations’ Amendment in the definition
of business’ January 01, 2020

- Amendments to I1AS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements” and IAS 8 "Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors’, clarify the definition of
‘Material’ and align the definition used in the Conceptual Framework and the
Standards January 01, 2020

2.5.4 Other than the oforesaid standards, interpretations ond amendments, the International Accounting Standords
Board (IASE) has olso jssued the following standards which have not been odapted locolly by the Securities and Exchonge
Commission of Pakistan:

- IFRS1 - First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards

- IFRS 14 - Regulatory Deferral Accounts

- IFRS17 = Insurance Contracts

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, except as disclosed in naote 251,

3.1 Property, plant and eguiprnent
{i) Operaoting assets
Operating assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation / amortisation and accumulated impairment, if any.

Depreciation is charged using the straight line method whereby the carrying value of an asset less estimated residual value,
if not insignificant, is written off over its estimated remaining useful life, Depreciation / amortisation on assets is charged from
the month of addition to the month of disposal. Cost of leasehold land is amortised over the period of the lease.
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Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the itern will Flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to statermnent of profit or loss during the year in which they
are incurred.

Gains and losses on disposal of operating assets are included in profit or loss currently.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values of each item of property, plant and equipment that is significant in
relation to the total cost of the asset are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate annually.

(i) Capitol work-in-progress
Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less impairment in value, if any. It consists of expenditure incurred and advances
made in respect of tangible fixed assets in the course of their construction and instatlation,

3.2 Intongibles

In a business combination, goodwill is recognised at the acquisition date and measured at the fair value of consideration paid
less the fair value of net assets acquired. After initial recognition, itis carred at cost less accumulated impairment, if any.
Goodwill is assessed annually for impairment.

3.3 Stores ond spares

These are valued at tower of cost, determined using weighted average method, and net realisable value, less provision for
obsolete items, if any. ltems in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon upto the
reporting date. Pravision is made for items which are obsolete and slow moving and is determined based on management
estimate regarding their future usability,

3.4 Inventories
These are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value, Cost is determined using first-in first-out method,

Cost of raw and packing materials comprise of purchase price including directly related expenses less trade discounts, Cost
of work-in-process and finished goods include cost of raw and packing materials, direct labour and related production
overheads.

Met realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less costs necessary to be incurred
to make the sale. Provision is made for slow moving and expired inventory where considered necessary.

3.5 Trode debis, loons ond other receivobles

Trade debts, loans and other receivables are stated initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amaortised cost using
the effective interest rate method. Provision is made on the basis of lifetime ECLs that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of the trade debts, loans, and other receivables. Bad debts are written off when considered irrecoverable,

Exchange gains or losses arising in respect of trade debts, loans and other receivables in foreign currency are added to their
respective carrying amounts.

3.6 [Investments at amortised cost

These are investments which meet the following criteria:

- These are held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows; and

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash Hows that are solely payments of princi
pal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

These are initially recognised at fair value which is equal to amount of consideration paid at the time of acquisition and
subsequently carried at amortised cosL

3.7 Coshond cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost / amortised cost, For the purpose of the
cash fow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash and cheques in hand, balances with banks on current,
savings and deposit accounts, short-term investments and short-term borrowings under running finance, having maturity of
upto three manths.

3.8 Shore Capitol
Ordinary shares are classified as equity and are recorded at their face value. Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of shares are shown in equity as a deduction (net of tax) from the proceeds.
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3.9 Staff retirement benefits

3.91 Defined benefit plon
The Company operates an approved funded gratuity plan (the Plan) for its permanent employees.

Gratuity is based on employees' last drawn salary. Provisions are made to cover the obligations under the scheme on the basis
of actuarial recommendations. The actuarial valuations are carried out using the Projected Unit Credit Method. Actuarial gain or
loss (remeasurements) are immediately recognised in ‘Other Comprehensive Income’ as they occur. The amount recognised in
the staternent of financial position represents the present value of defined benefit obligation as reduced by the fair value of the
plan assets. Current service costs and any past service costs together with net interest cost are charged to profit or loss.

Retirement benefits are payable to ernployess on completion of prescribed qualifying period of service under the Plan.
3.9.2 The Company also operates approved contributory provident fund for all its permanent employees.

310 Compensoted obsences
The Company provides for compensated absences of its non-management employees on unavailed balance of leave in the
period in which the leave is earned.

3.1 Trade and other payables

These are stated initially at fair value and subsequently rmeasured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
Exchange gains and losses arsing in respect of liabilities in foreign currency are added to the carrying amount of the respec-
tive liability.

3.12 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, itis
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be
made. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect current best estimate.

The amount recognised as provision is the best estimate of consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of
reporting period, taking into account the risk and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

313 Share bosed payments
Cash settled share based payments provided to employees are recorded as liability in the financial statements at fair value
over the period the services are received.

3.14 Finonciol ossets and liabilities

@) Initiol Recognition

All financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at their fair value plus or minus, in the case of a financial asset
or financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of the financial asset and financial liability. These are subsequently measured at fair value or amortised cost as the case
may be.

b (i) Classification of finonciol ossets

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
. at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL"),

- at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI), or
5 at amortised cost.

The Company determines the classification of Ainancial assets at initial recognition. The classification of instruments (other
than equity instruments) is driven by the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and their contractual
cash flow characteristics.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash Hows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at FVTOC!:

2 the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash Flows
and selling the financial assets; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
pauments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

By default, all other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL.

b (i) Classificotion of financial liabilities

The Company classifies its financial liabilities in the following categories:
- at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL), or

- at amaortised cost.

Financial liabilities are rmeasured at amortised cost, unless they are required to be measured at FVTPL or the Company has
opted to measure themn at FVTPL.

c) Subsequent measurement

Financial ossets at FVTOCI

Elected investments in equity instruments at FVTOC! are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently
they are measured at fair value, with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive (loss)
income,

Financial ossets ond lobilitles at omortised cost
Financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs, and subsequently
carried at amartised cost, and in the case of financial assets, less any impairment.

Financiol assets ond liobilities ot FYTPL

Financial assets and liabilities carried at FVTPL are initially recorded at fair value and transaction costs are expensed in the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, Realized and unrealized gains and losses arising from changes in
the fair value of the financial assets and liabilities held at FWTPL are included in the staterment of profit or loss and other compre-
hensive income in the period in which they arise. Where management has opted ta recognise a financial liability at FVTPL, any
changes associated with the Company’s own credit risk will be recognised in other comprehensive (loss) income. Currently, there
are no financial liabilities designated at FVTPL.

d) Impoirment of financiol assets ot omortised cost
The Company recognises a loss atlowance for expected credit losses on financial assets that are measured at amortised cost as
more fully explained in note 2.5.1.

e} Derecognition

I. Finonciol assets

The Company derecognizes financial assets only when the contractual rights to cash Flows from the financial assets expire, or
when it transfers the financial assets and substantially all the associated risks and rewards of ownership to another entity. On
derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying value and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss. In addition, on derecognition of an investment in a debt
instrument classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investrments revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss. In contrast, on derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the Company has elected
on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation
reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to statement of changes in equity.

fl. Finoncial tabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities onlu when its obligations under the financial liabilities are discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying armount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in the staternent of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

315 Off-selting of financiol ossets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are off-set and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position if the Company has
a legal right to set off the transaction and also intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneousiy.

316 Impoirment of non-financial assets
Carrying values of assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carruing
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value may not be recoverable, If any such indication exists, assets or cash-generating units are tested far impairment. Cash-gen-
erating units to which goodwill is allocated are tested for impairment annually. Where the carrying values of assets or cash-gen-
erating units exceed the estimated recoverable amount, these are written down to their recoverable amount and the resulting
impairment is charged to statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Impairment is reversed only if there has been a change in estimates used to determine recoverable amounts and only to the
extent that the revised carrying value does not exceed the carrying value that would have existed, had no impairment been
recognised, except impairment of goodwill which is not reversed.

317 Revenue recagnition

Revenue is recognised at amounts that reflect the consideration that the Company expects to be entitled to in exchange for
transferring goods or services to a customer. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
and is recognised on the following basis:

- Revenue from sale of goods, scrap sales or service fee is recognised when or as control of goods or services have been
transferred to a customer either over time or at a point in time, when the performance obligations are met.

- Returns on saving accounts, deposit accounts and investments at amortised cost are recognised using effective interest
rate method.

- Insurance commission is recognised when performance obligation is met,

- Promotional allowance is recognised when the right to receive the allowance is established.

A18 ljorah

Inijarah transactions, significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor, Islamic Financial
Accounting Standard 2 - 'ljrah’ requires the recognition of ‘Ujrah payments' (lease rentals) against ijarah financing as an expense
in the profit or foss account on a straight line basis over the ijarah term.

315  Toxation

3121 Current
The charge for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation after taking into account tax credits and
rebates available, if any, and taxes paid under the final tax regime.

3.18.2 Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method on all temporary differences arising between tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts, Deferred tax liability is recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the statement of
profit or loss except for deferred tax arising on remeasurements of retirement benefits obligations which is recognised in other
comprehensive income,

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is
settled based on the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

3.20 Foreign currency transoctions ond translation

Foreign currency transactions are recorded into Pakistani Rupee using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transac-
tions. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency are translated into Pakistani Rupee at the rates of exchange prevailing at
the statement of financial position date. Exchange gains and losses are included in income currently.

The financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupee, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

321 Dividend
Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders and appropriations to / from reserves is recognised in the period in which
these are approved.

3.22 Eornings pershare

The Company presents basic earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit
or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the year,

3.23 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-mak-
er [CODM) who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, The management
has determined that the Company has a single reportable segment as the CODM views the Company's operations as one
reportable segment.
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2018 2017
Note Rupees
4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Dperating assels 41 2,098,271 99,754,799
Capital work-in-progress 45 551,560,983 24964872
2548778,094 124,715,671
4.1 Operating assets
Lensehnld Eu"ﬂfﬂg ﬂﬂd E;
land  Improvements r’:::":‘;':l::” :‘;jm;“”e Vehicles Office -
(note4.4)  ©n Leasehold ry xtures equipment
land
Rupees
Net corrying value bosis
Yeor ended December 31, 2018
Dpening net book volue - 10,802 888 - 1053836  S9523777 28368300 99,754,793
Transterred from GSK OTC (note 1.3) = =
- Cast 7646000 ||685639939 (1520533845 || 35121090 || 22170500 || 74556831 |[2,345668,205
- Accumulated depreciation
J amortisation (E06,464) (32N0827) || 185,476,346} || (3,842074) || (16BS088) || (3290118} || {242,601826)
7039536 B53520112 1355057499 25279016 20505431 4165515 21020686309
Additions (at cost) = : - 12845545 97593845 1928830 N2174,280
Disposals —
= Cost 5 > 2 (10,228,503} - (10,228,503)
= Accumulated depreciation E s : = 4085679 - 4085679
- - - - (5,142 524) = (B142,824)
Depreciation [/ amastisation R _
charge (300,621) (24754773} (23644709) (7975788) (37406670) N12552.894) (210535453)
Closing net book value 6,738,915 B42577225 1231412790 3100881 134079559 5240001 2088271
Gross carrying value bosis
At December 31, 2018
Cost 7646000 607891028 1520533845 49928188 204979410 117719893 2598698364
Accumulated depreciation
J amaortisation (S07.085) (55313.803) (283121055} (18919577} (70839851 (65319882) (500481253
Met book value 6738915 642577225 123412790 N008BEN 134,079,558 5240001 20882171
Depreciation rate % per annum 4 25and 5 B.67 and 15 10 25 10w3333
Net corrying value bosis
Year ended December 31, 2017
Opening net book volue : 110951 - 1270388 53727090 880923 74916221
Additions (at cost) ~ . - . 33136500 27019008 60,155,508
Dispasals = - 3 - {14,872103) (r48,627)|| 115:620.730)
- Cost - - - = 4,621,500 268,894 4,910,384
- Accumulated depreciation
- s L = (10,250,603} 459,733) {10,710,336)
Wirite offs - net book value - - - - - (1641,963) (1,641963)
Depreciation charge : (308,625) 2 (210,553) (70882100 (5358243 (229648631
Closing net book value - 10,802,888 - 1059836 59523777 28,368,300 949,754,799
Gross carnrying volue bosls
At December 31, 2017
Cost = 12,251,089 - 2161553 95437568 41234172 151084382
Accumulated depreciation = [1.448.203) = o177 (35913791 (12865872)  (51,329583)
Met book value - 10,802,886 - 1058836 59523777 28368300 99754799
Depraciation rate % per annum 4 25and 5 667 and 15 10 25 10t 3333
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4.2 Details of assets sold, having net book value in excess of Rs, 500,000 are as follows:

Relationship Particulars

pa Accumuloted Book Sole Modeof  of Purchaoser
Description Cost  depreciation  value  proceeds G disposal  with the 0
Compony it
Rupees
Mator vehicle 1,889,000 144462 1744538 1755000 10,462 Company  Ex Executive M;Dimla
Eg
paticy
Motor vehicle 2428584 1133344 1295250 1295250 - ‘Company  Chief Executive  Mr. Sohail
policy Offcer haalie:
Mr. Malik
Muhammad
Motorvehicle 1099000 526604 572396 981900 409,504 Tender  Thidparty e~ New
Road, Karim
Apartments,
Flat No. 204-A,
Karachi
Motor vehicle* : . 594,250 811,750 17,500 Compani Ex Oirector Mﬁ;g:"ﬁ"
paticy
Mator vehicle 1215703 682500 533,203 798000 264797  Company  Employee hﬁa-aﬁiﬁa
policy
M. Jawaid - Flak
Motor vehicle 974,000 466,708 507,292 981,000 473,708 Company Third party h&mmﬂ
palicy East, Kavachi
Total 8,200,547 2953618 5,246,929 6422900 117597
* This vehicle was transferred at book value from GSK Pakistan.
4.3 Particulars of immovable assets of the Company are as follows:
Location Address Usoge of immovable property Totol area
S4 acres and
Jamshoro Sandoz Nagar, Petaro Road, Jamsharo Factory 25 ghuntas

4.4 Leasehold land consists of land located at Jamshoro Taluka Kotri, District Dadu, The Company is the beneficial owner of
the land, however, the title and lease is yet ta be transferred in the name of the Companuy. The land is currently in the name of
MNovartis Pharma (Pakistan) Limited,

2018 2017
Note Rupees

4.5 Copital work-In-progress
Opening balance 24,964,872 56,732,871
Transferred from GSK OTC 13 323,984,495 -
Additions during the year 314,785,896 28387509
Transters during the year (112.174,280) (60,155,508)
Closing balance 451 551,560,983 24,964,872
4.5.1 As at December 31, capital work-in-progress represents:
- Civil works 31,875,289 7170610
- Plant and machineny 374,228,564 *
- Furniture and fixtures 14,146,418 2,252,685
- Dffice equipments 109,248 467 744577
- Advances to suppliers 22062245 8127000

551,560,982 24,964,872

4.5.2 The advances to supplier do not carry any interest or markup,
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5. INTANGIBLE

This represents intangible acquired by the Company under the Scheme of Merger {nate 1.3) which comprise of goodwill
arised an the business acquisition of Novartis Pharma (Pakistan) Limited (NPPL) by GSK OTC which is the difference
between the purchase consideration and the fair value of assets acquired.

The recoverable amount of goodwill is the higher of value in use and fair value less cost to sell. Value in use is calculated as
the net present value of the projected cash flows of the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs, discounted
at risk-adjusted discount rate.

Detaits relating to the discounted cash flow model used in the impairment test are as follows:

Waluation basis Value in use
Key assumptions Sales growth rates
Determination of assumptions Growth rates are internal forecasts based on both internal and external market

information and past performance.
Cost reflects past experience, adjusted for inflation and expected changes,
Discount rate is primarily based on weighted average cost of capital.
Terminal growth rate 5.0%
Period of specific projected cash flows 5 years
Discount rate 17%

The valuation indicates sufficient headroom such that a 1% change in the terminal growth and discount rate has not resulted
in an impairment of the intangible.

2018 2017
Nate — Rupees
6. LONG-TERM LOANS TO EMPLOYEES
Secured - considered good &1 10,495,280 1,288,098
Recoverable within one year 9 (3.134484) 443,776)
7,360,796 854,322

6.1 These lpans have been given in accordance with the terms of employment for purchase of motor car, motor cycle, computer and for the
purpose of house retocation and are repayable in 18 to 60 egual monthly installments. These loans are interest free. All loans are secured
against the retirernent fund balances,

2018 2017
Note — Rupees

7. INVENTORIES
Raw and packing materials [including in transit Rs. 70,07 million
(2017: Rs. 105.57 million)) 931347660 219,860,556
Work-in-process 18,643,062 14,850,762
Finished goods [including in transit Rs. 14771 million
{217: Rs, 114,58 million)] 1,366,678,049 339,760,302

A 2316668771 874,471,627
Less: Provision for siow moving, obselete and damaged stock 7.2 {85,307695) (52,553,078)

2,231,361,076 821,918,549
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2018 2017

Note —_—  RlUpges

21 Detalls of imventories held with the third parties is os follows:

Foruse in third party manufacturing

- Roomi Enterprises {Private) Limited ﬂZ,QDE,Q'M 12,476,508
Stock held at third party warehouse

- DHL Global Forwarding Pakistan (Private) Limited 99956 437 627,283,801
- Emirates Supply Chain Services (Private) Limited 191,575,980 -
- Connect Logistics (Private) Limited 385538,399 -
- Parazelsus Pakistan (Private) Limited 403,960,345 -

7.2 During the year, inventories of Rs. 51.34 million (2017 Rs. 3714 million) have been written off against provision.
7.3 Inventories includes items costing Rs. 726 million (2017: Rs. Nil) valued at net realisable value of Rs, 82.7 million (2017: Rs. Mil million).

2018 2017
Note —— Rupees
8, TRADE DEBTS
Trade debts 81 758078713 274,486,767
Less: Allowance for impairment of trade debts (3,216,737) (3.183,435)
754,862,976 271,293,332

8.1 These include Rs. 376 million receivable from NPPL against toll manufacturing and sale of goods.
8.2 The ageing analysis of trade debts past due but not impaired is as follows:

2018 2017
Nate —— Rupees
= Upte 3months 39,410,443 19,414,182
- 2to & manths 26899074 177608
- Bto12 months 49,407,244 -
91,517,461 19,591,790
8. LOANS AND ADVANCES - considered good
Laan to GlaxoSmithkline OTC (Private) Limited (GSK OTC) a1 - 1,000,000,000
Current portion of lang-term loans o employees & 3134484 443,776
Advances to;
- employees 9.2 5912823 1,427,935
- suppliers 22934524 37926796
- against letter of credit 229,850,915 185,128,235
261,832,746 1,224,927,742

9.1 The Comnpany gave a loan Lo GSK OTC, an associated company, on Decemnber 22, 2016 for the purchase of land, building and
manufacturing facility from NPPL. The tenure of the loan was eleven months. The loan was further extended for a tenure of eleven months
on November 20, 2017, Interest was receivable quarteriy at the rate quated by a designated bank for advances / lean in Pak Rupee for the
respective interest perod. After the amalgamation (refer note 1.3), the loan has been setted off,

9.2 Advances to empioyess are provided to meet business expenses and are settled as and when the expenses are incurred,

2018 2017
Rupees
10. TRADE DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
Container deposits - considered good 1464230 28457039
Prepayments 62843239 22675272
77485540 52,132,311
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1, REFUNDS DUE FROM GOVERNMENT

These represent sales tax refundable due from Government which are considered good.

2018 2017
Note Rupees
12. OTHER RECEIVABLES
Due from associated companies 121 519,026,698 23,760,000
Workers' Profits Participation Fund 123 10,501,694 -
Others ‘84,630,321 2556,205
614158713 26,316,205
12.1 Due from associated companies - considered good
GlaxoSmithKline Pakistan Limited 51,456,053 -
GlaxoSmithKline Services Unlimited 5,748,285 -
GlaxoSmithKline Export Limited, UK 1822360 -
GlaxeSmithKline OTC (Private) Limited - 23,760,000
519,026,698 23,760,000
12.2 The maximum aggregate amount due from related parties at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 519.03 million {2017: Rs.
284.52 million).
As at December 31, 2018, the age analysis of these related parties receivables are:
2018 2017
Note Rupees
Mot yet due = =
Upta 3 months 519026698 23.760,000
3 to B months - -
519,026,698 23,760,000
12.3 Workers' Profits Participetion Fund
Opening balance liability 13,620,620 46,473,000
Transferred from GSK OTC 1.3 4549 700 .
Allecation for the year 79,498 606 £2,965120
Interest charge for the year = 4182570
Payment to the fund (208,170,690} -
Closing balance {asset) / liability (10,501,694) 113,620,690

13. INVESTMENT AT AMORTISED COST

This represents a treasury bill which was held with Companuy's banker for safe custody. The yield on treasury bill was 5.99% per annum.

The treasury bill has been matured in February 2018

2018 2007
Note Rupees

14, BANK BALANCES
With banks
- an -:Iepnsila_mmunts 141 400,000,000 1,000,000,000
- on PLS savings account 141 270103653 103,011,566
- Oncurrent account 37338878 -

707442531 1,103,011,566

14.1 At December 31, 2018 the rates of mark-up on term deposit accounts and on PLS savings account were 510% o 9% (2017: 5% to

5.3%) per annum and 7% to 8% (2017 3.75%) per annum respectively.
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15. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised share capital
28 2017 2018 2007
(Number of shares) Rupees
200,000,000 200,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 2000000000 2,000.000,000
Issued, subscribed ond poid-up copital
Ordinary shores of Rs. 10
2018 2017 2018 2017
{(Number of shaores) Nate Rupees
_ Shares atlotted for considesation paid )
10,000 10,000 in cash 100,000 100,000
Shares allotted for cansideration
95,540,183 95540183 other than cash under the Scheme 1 955401830 955,401,830
Shares allotted for consideration
other than cash under the Scheme
21,504,325 - of Marger 13 215043250 -
117,054,508 95,550,183 1,170,545,080 955,501,830

15.1 As at December 31, 2018, GlaxoSmithKline Cansumer Healthcare BV, and its nominees held 100,423,259 shares (2017: 78,918,934

shares).

15.2 The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry nio rights to fixed income. The holders of shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitied to one vote per share at the meeting of the Compamy. All shares rank equally with

regard tothe Company's residual assets.

2018 2007
Note Rupees

16, RESERVES
Capital reserves
- Reserve arising under the Scheme of Arrangement 11 101,813,533 101,913,533
- Reserve arising on amalgamation under the Scheme of Merger 1.3 7287255969 -
Revenue reserve - unappropriated profit 1,833,800,555 1,239 417.710

2/664,440,057 1,341,331,243

17. STAFF RETIREMENT BENEFITS

171 Staff retirement benefit

17.1.1 The Company operates an approved funded gratuity scheme for allits eligible employees. Actuarial valuation of the Plan is carried
out every year and the latest actuarial valuation was carried out as of December 31, 2018 using the Projected Unit Credit Methad,

17.1.2 Plan assets held in trust are governed by local regulations which mainly include Trust Act, 1882; the Companies Act, 2Z0M7; Income
Tax Rules, 2002 and the Rules under the trust deeds. Responsibility for governance of the Plans, including investment decisions and
contribution schedules, rests with the Board of Trustees. The Company appoints the trustees and all trustees are employees.of the

Company.
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17.1.3 Details of the Plan as per the actuarial valuation are as follows:

2018 2017

Naote — Rupees
1714 Statement of financiol position reconciliotion
Present value of defined benefit obligation at December 31 1715 108,057,269 70,373,254
Fair value of plan assets at December 31 1716 (70,421,819) (50,842176)
Deficit 37,635,450 19,531,078
1715 Movement in the present volue of defined benefit obligation
Balance at January 1 70,373,254 54,520,074
Batance transferred from GSK OTC 13 31704013 -
Benefits paid by the Plan (33,945870) (5,441,214}
Current service cost 25,253,155 8,291,079
Interest cost 8026441 427330
Remeasurement (gain) / loss on obligation (1164,998) 8,273,854
Balance transferred from GSK Pakistan 17114 7801274 456,160
Balance at December 31 108,057,269 70,373,254
171.6 Movement in the foir value of plon ossets
Balance at January 1 50,842,176 45973630
Batance transferred from GSK OTC 13 21,266,874 -
Contributions made to the Plan 23,860,160 7492213
Banefits paid by the Plan (33.945870) (5,441,214}
Interest income 5,021344 3457665
Remeasuremant loss an plan assets (4,524139) (1,096,278}
Balance transferred fram GSK Pakistan 17114 780,274 456,160
Balance at December 31 70,421,819 50,842,176
171.7 Expense recognised In statement of profit or loss
Current service cost 25,253,155 8,281,079
Net interest cost 3.015,097 815636
Expense recognised in statement of profit or loss 28,268,252 89,106,715
17.1.8 Remeasurements recognised In other comprehensive income
Experience (gain) / loss (1.164,2398) 8,273,854
Rermeasuremnent of fair value of plan assets 4524139 1,096,278
Remeasurements recagnised in other comprehensive income 3,359,141 9370132
17.1.9 Net recognised lobility
Met Hability at beginning of the year 19,531,078 8,546,444
Net liability transferred from GSK OTC 13 10437139 -
Expense recognised in statement of profit or loss 28268252 906,715
Conkribution made to the Plan during the year (23.960,160) (7.492,213)
Remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income 3359141 9370132
Recognised liability as at December 31 37,635,450 19,531,078
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17310 Plan assets of the Company comprise of the following:

20i8 2017

Rupees ] Rupees %%
- Treasury bills - 0% 9,845,650 19%
- Pakistan Investment Bonds 52,870,284 75% 34,783,405 68%
- Bank batances 9750261 14% 5,756,961 12%
- DOthers 78,274 9% 456,160 1%
70,421,819 100% 50,842,176 100%

Z018 2017
% %
1411 Significant actuarial assumptions

Discount rate at December 31 1375 825
Future satary increases 13.75 8.25

17.1.12 Mortality was assumed to be based on SLIC (2001-05}) Ultimate mortality tables rated down ane year.

17.1.12 In case of the funded plans, investment positions are managed within an asset-liability matching (ALM) framework that
has been developed to achieve long-term investments that are in line with the obligations under the retirement benafit plan,
Within this framework, the ALM objective is to match assets to the retirement benefit obligations by investing in long-term
fixed interest securities with maturities that match the benefit payments as they fall due.

The Companuy’s gratuity expense for the year ending December 31, 2019 is expected to be Rs. 35.48 million.

17.1.14 During the current and previous years, certain employees were transferred from GlaxoSmithKline Pakistan Limited to
the Company. Accordingly, their defined benefit obligations and related assets are transferred to the Company’s gratuity fund.

17.2 Sensitivity analysis of the Company for actuarial ossumplions
The Gratuity scheme exposes the entity to the following risks:

- Mortality risks:
The risk that the actual mortality experience is different. The effect depends on the beneficiaries’ service/age distribution
and the benefit,

- Investment risks:
The risk of the investment underperforming and not being sufficient to meet the liabilities.

- Final salary risks:
The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is higher than what we assumed. Since the benefit is
calculated on the final salary, the benefit amount increases similarly.

- Withdrawal risks:
The risk of higher or lower withdrawal experience than assumed. The final effect could go either way depending on the
beneficiaries’ service/age distribution and the benefit.

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions ist

Impoct on defined
benefit obligation

Changein Increase in Decreose in
assumption assumption ossumption
Rupees
Discount rate at December 31 1% (10,175,985) N87234
Future satary increases 1% 7847919 (5,937.703)
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Iflongevity increases by 1year, the resultant increase in obligation is insignificant.

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In
practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated, When calculating the sensitivity
of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same methed (present value of the defined benefit
obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculat-
ing the gratuity liability recognised within the statement of financial position.

2018 2017
17.3 Experience odjustments
{Gain) / loss on obligation
{as percentage of plan obligation) -108% N76%
Loss on plan assets
{as percentage of plan assets) 542% 216%

17.4 The weighted average duration of approved funded gratuity scheme for its permanent employees is 9.42 years.

17.5 Expected maturity analysis of undiscounted retirement benefit plan of the Companwy:

Less than Between Between Between Total
a year 1-2years 2-5years 5-10years
Rupees
At December 31, 2018 7808934 14,508,407 43,087,864 173,491,845 238,997050
At December 31, 2017 33284608 2367958 18162863 31,749,646 85,565,075

17.6 Figures in this note are based on the latest actuarial valuation carried out as at December 31, 2018.

18. DEFERRED TAXATION December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
- Transferred ;
Opening oSk Charges  CloSine  Opening o, Closing
liability OTC (Note il liobility liahility (reversol) lability
/ losset) 13 / (asset) / (osset) /(asset)
Rupees
Deferred tox Wobility on toxable
temporary differences
Accelerated tax depreciation
and amaortisation 4786,318 121,748,010 {3685970) 127A48358 5,608,730 {823.412) 4786318
Deferred tox ossel on deductible
temparory differences
= - allowance for irmpairment
of trade debts {856,007 - 41,254 824,753) (1871663 1005656 (266,007)
- unabsorbed depreciation and
amartisation - {58253732) 58253732 . = - =
- provision for slow maving,
obsolete and damaged stock {6,859,863) - (15.066,808) (21,926,669)| | 18688.450) 1,828,587 (6,859,863}
- - staff retiremant benafits (5,296,506} . (5.095174) (03MB80) || (2362630) (2933876) (5296506}

(13022376} (59.253732) 39133006  (33M43102) (22922743) 9900367 (13022376}

(8,236,058) 62494278 35447036 89705256  (7313,013) 60764955  (8,236,058)

104 GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd,



18.1 Charge / (reversal) of deferred tax has been allocated to the profit or loss and other comiprehensive income as follows:

2018 2017
Note Rupees
- laken to profit orloss for the year 36,387,994 11887995
- taken to other comprehensive income being tax impact of
remeasurement gain or loss on staff retirement benefits (940,958) (2,811,040}
35,447,036 9,076,955
19. TRADE AND OTHER FAYABLES
Creditors
- Associated companies 181 31,040,880 308,906,662
= Others 143,661,843 82,524,470
Bills payable
- Associated companies 19.2 199,603,508 58,706,082
- Dthers 116,338,706 9144 31
Accrued liabitities 12.3 953,560,753 758,658 451
Advances from customers 73,651,356 32,097,004
Tawes deducted at source and payable Lo stalutory authorities 31,518,086 53,093,706
Workers' Profits Participation Fund 123 - 13,620,690
Workers" Welfare Fund 76,369,551 44181657
Sindh Services Sales tax 1279975 .
Central Research Fund 15898721 .
Others 33,765,835 3.048.851
1.956,690,220 1461,982,884
19.1 Creditors include payable to the following associated companies:
GlaxoSmithkline Pakistan Limited = 308,906,662
GlaxoSmithkline Export Limited, UK 3305129 3
Novartis Consumer Health S.A 307735751 -
1,040,680 308,906,662
19.2 Bills payable include payable to the following associated companies:
GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Trading Services Limited 75278178 29,525,769
GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Health Care Trading Limited 26,199,103 2241930
GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Health Care, Singapore - 1,504,183
GlaxoSmithkline Limited, India 32048282 8317624
GlaxoSmithkline Consumer Health Care UK Limited 60,788,853 8277725
GlaxoSmithKline Export Limited, UK - 983879
GlaxeSmithKline Services Unlimited, UK 5,289,092 -
199,603,508 56,708,082

19.2 This includes liability for share based compensation amounting to Rs. 8.32 million {2017: Rs. 18.29 million).
20. RUNNING FINANCE UNDER MARK-UF ARRANGEMENT
As at Decernber 31, 2018, the facility for running finance available from a bank amounted to Rs. 1.84 billien (2017: Rs. 1.84 billion). Rate of

mark-up is one month KIBOR plus 1% (2017: one month KIBOR plus 1%) per annum. The arrangement is secured by a Stand-by Letter of
Credit issued by the Company's parent.
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2018 2017

Note ————— Rupees
21, PROVISION FOR SEVERANCE
Balance as at January 1 ) = 2
Transferred from GSK OTC 13 5,443,034 z
Charge / {reversal) for the year (5.443.034) -

Payments made during the year

Balance as at December 31 = =

211 This represents provision made against severance cost.
22, UNPAID DIVIDEND

This includes part of final dividend for the year ended December 31, 2017 which remained unpaid to the Company's
shareholders. Out of total amount of unpaid dividend Rs. 394.58 million pertains to the Company's foreign shareholder
{E:tlaxnﬁrnith!{t‘lne Consumer Healthcare B.V. The dividend repatriation requires approval from the State Bank of Pakistan which
is in process,

23. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
23.1 Contingencies

{a) Income tox

Tax Year 2007 (Financial Year 2016) was selected for audit under section 177 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, The
Company challenged such selection and filed civil suit before Sindh High Court [SHC]. However, pursuant the Supreme
Court's judgment dated June 27, 2018, the Honourable High Court of Sindh required to pay 50% of the demand for
maintainability of suit. Consequently, the company considered to withdraw the suit. After such withdrawal, the department has
re-initiated audit proceedings. The said proceedings are in process.

During the year, GlaxoSmithKline OTC (Private) Limited received a notice issued under section 161(1A) / 205 of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 whereby the authorities alleged that the Company has not deducted / withheld / collected tax on certain
expenses and intended to recover Rs. 19,345,630 along with default surcharge of Rs. 2,321,475, Subsequent to the show
cause notice, the authorities passed the order on January 30, 2018, raising demand of Rs. 4,434,856. Against the order, the
Company has filed appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) which is pending for hearing.

The management is confident that the ultimate decisions in the above cases will be in favour of the Company, hence, no
provision has been made in respect of the aforementicned tax demands.

{b) Sales tax

The Deputy Commissioner Intand Revenue (DCIR), LTI-Nl, Karachi, passed the Order-in-Original, dated November 28, 2018, to
establish sales tax demand aggregating to Rs, 27,526,485 on various issues mainly on the admissibility of input tax covering
the tax periods from July 2016 to June 2018, The Company made under protest payment of the principal amount of sales tax
at Rs. 21,886,548 which included default surcharge amounting Rs. 4,244, 700. Further, the Company preferred the appeal
before the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals), challenging the input tax claims as treated inadmissible and levies of the
default surcharge and penalty.

The management is confident that the ultimate decisions in the above cases will be in favour of the Company, hence, no
provision has been made in respect of the aforementioned tax demands.

23.2 Cammitments

23.2.1 The facilities for opening letters of credit and quarantees as at December 31, 2018, amounted to Rs. 1168 million and Rs.
110 million respectively of which the amount remaining unutilised at year end was Rs. 803 million and Rs. 109 miltion
respectively.

23.2.2 Commitments for capital expenditure outstanding as at December 31, 2018, amount to Rs. 18015 million (2017: Rs.
9.88 million).

23.2.3 As at December 31, 2018, commitments for rentals under ijarah arrangements amounted to Rs. 14.27 million (2017: Rs.
Nil) payable as follows:
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2018 2017
Rupees
Mot later than 1year 8186,967
Later than 1year but not later than S years 6081967
14,268,934 -
24, NET SALES
Gross sales
- Local 15,370,243,846 9,162,363 044
- Export 442225670 s
Less:
Commissions, returns and discounts (361,613,210) (379,256,536)
Sales tax (575,588,799) (484,964,082)
(937.202,009) 1864,220,618)
14,875,267.507 8,298,142 426

24.1'With regards to the previously reported hardship cases, as per orders passed by the Supreme Court of Pakistan, the
company was advised to re-submit their hardship applications under new Drug Pricing Policy 2018 (DPP 2018) to Drug

Regulatony Authority of Pakistan (DRAFP).

These hardship cases concluded favorably in the light of DPP 2018 and formal natification of revised prices has also been

issued by DRAP dated December 31, 2018.

24.2 Thisincludes sales amounting to Rs. 6.27 billion (2017: Rs, 6.22 billion) made by GSK Pakistan on behalf of the

Company {refer note 1.2).
24.3 This includes sales amounting to Rs. 234 billion (2017: Nil) to NPPL.
2018 2017
Note Rupees

25, COSTOF SALES
Raw and packing materials consumed 3,951.962,077 535,144,648
Manufacturing costs charged by third parties 206,206,078 198,972 468
Stores and spares consumed 78353407 =
Salaries, wages and other benefits 257 682,805993 5,049,576
Fuel and power 146,863,681 -
Rent, rates and taxes 75,253,556 -
Insurance 38815485 19,511,014
Repairs and maintenance 174.026,130 -
Travelling and entertainment 29,760,291 1,220,939
Vehicle running 777403 405,272
Ujrah pauments 27557049 -
Canteen expenses 58,864,222 -
Security expenses 1418138
Printing and stationery 7326818 -
Communication and entertainment 426713 -
Depreciation 185120185 675,000
Handling, freight and transportation 42 413 203 8238280
Stock written off 29,930,764 -
Provision for slow rmaoving, obsolete and damaged stock B4,094122 4,340,498
Others 58,847765 578,593

5,915,360,080 874,136,288
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2018 2017

Note —  Rupees
Add: Opening stock of work-in-process 14,850,762 16,207,828
Add: Work-in-process transferred from GSK OTC 13 7,718,375 -
Less: Closing stock of work-in-process (18.643,062) (14,850,762)
Cost of goods manufactured 5.913287165 875,493,354
Add: Opening stock of finished goods 539,760,302 509,488,194
Add: Finished goods transferred from GSK OTC 1.3 295357383 -
Add: Purchase of finished goods 5,047 468,586 4.451,684,276

11,801,873.443 5,836,665,824
Less: Closing stock of finished goods (1,366,678,049) (639,760,309)

10,535,195,394 5,196,905,515

251 Salaries, wages and other benefits include Rs. 17.79 million (2017: Rs. 0.1 million) and Rs. 17.03 (2017: Rs. 0.4 million)
in respect of defined benefit plans and contributory provident fund respectively.

2018 2017
Note ——————— Rupees

26. SELLING, MARKETING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and other benefits 261 27208619 139,175,230
Sales promotion 836,073598 519,472,058
Advertising 752097473 783,996,880
Handling, freight and transportation 340,813,256 221,697 617
Travelling and entertainment 44 206,393 30,524,914
Depreciation 20,847.409 19,386,525
Vehicle running 14,732,778 6,366,798
Allowance for impairment of trade debts 23,302 158,196
Repairs and maintenance 3982706 3,213,609
Insurance 997032 940,752
Printing and stationery 2B628,245 2454636
Security expenses 3,456,189 3033107
Shared services cost 262 78,175,200 78.175,200
Other expenses 6,793,229 3441151

2,376,943,429 1,822,036,673

26.1 Salaries, wages and other benefits include Rs. 7.09 million (2017: Rs. 5.68 million) and Rs. 7.45 million (2017: Rs. 628
million) in respect of defined benefit plan and contributory provident fund respectively.

26.2 These represent cost reimbursements Lo GSK Pakistan in respect of costs of various functions / services provided to the
Campany under a cost sharing agreement.
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2mea 2097
Note Rupees

27 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Salaries, wages and ather benefits 27 100,000,335 91,999,495
Depreciation 4567859 2903108
Leqal and professional charges 55459421 50,863,646
Travelling and entertainment 9,097979 5330483
Training and seminars 188,899 -
Repairs and maintenance 12,475,836 4,631,220
Auditors’ remuneration 273 £,531800 5324102
Vehicle running 4,428,889 2634963
Publication and subscriptions 6,825,168 1142687
Insurance 194,079 18,144
Printing and stationery 3,827,200 1417935
Service fees 12 12,000,000 12,000,000
Ujrah payments 5,178,701 -
Shared services cost 262 45514163 35,546,232
Others 1,505,619 2857294

288,796,048 216,729,307
Less: Recovery of expenses 272 (23,7680,000)

288,796,048 192,969,307

27.1Salaries, wages and other benefits include Rs. 3.39 million (2017: Rs. 3.32 million) and Rs. 3.50 million (2017: Rs. 312

million) in respect of defined benefit plan and contributony provident fund respectively.

27.2 These represented cost reimbursements to the Company against cost of services provided to GSK OTC under a cost

sharing agreement.
2018 2017
Note Rupees
27.3 Auditors’ remuneration
Audit fee 3892900 1,000,000
Fee for limited review of half yearly financial statements
and other certifications 2,045,000 3831102
Out-of-pocket expenses 594,000 493,000
6,531,900 5,324,102
2B.0THER OPERATING EXPENSES
Workers' Profits Participation Fund 123 79,498,606 652,965,120
Workers' Welfare Fund 31,799,442 25,498,657
Central Research Fund 15,899,721 z
127,197,769 88,463,777
29. OTHER INCOME
Income from financial assets
Return on treasury bill 10,792,542 1,262,857
Income on savings and deposit accounts 51192.398 34,187,224
Interest income on loan to GSK OTC - 777315
Income from non-financial asset
Gain on disposal of operating assets 23577 2,510,570
Others
Insurance claim recovery 62202693 68,073,343
Insurance commission B,057135 3388277
Scrap sales 8703389 -
141,362,334 181,205,422
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2018 2017
Mote — Rupees
S0, FINANCIAL CHARGES
Interest on running finance 143,719,414 -
Exchange loss - net 81808624 3797254
Bank charges 276,81 154,139
Interest on Workers' Profits Participation Fund 12.3 - 4182570
225,804,849 8133,963
31 TAXATION
Current
- for the year 315337094 361812776
- for prior year 311 36415321 90,322,063
Deferred 36,387.994 n887995
388,140,409 464,022,840

21.1This includes prior year charge of super tax amounting to Rs. 36.42 million imposed under section 4B of the Income Tax

Ordinance, 2001 respectively.

31.2 Inview of management, sufficient tax pravision has been made in the Company's financial statements. Comparison of tax
provision as per the financial statements viz-a-viz tax assessment for the last three years is as follows:

2017 2016 2015
Rupees
Tax assessed as per most recent tax assessment 350,153,928 301177448 350,000
Provision in accounts for income tax 384, 332776 423585 350 3,500,000
2018 2017
Rupees

31.3 Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit

Profit befare taxation 1462692352 1170838613
Applicable tax rate 28% 30%
Tax calculated at applicable tax rate 424180782 351,251,584
Impact of taxability at Final Tax Regime 456,844,803 103543834
Effect of prior year tax 36,415,321 90,322,069
Effect of tax credits (33,602,075) (86,583,959)
Effect of change in tax rate (4,646,408) -
Effect of permanent difference = 6,320,280
Tax effect of other than temporary differences (81,052,014) (830,978)

388,140,409 464,022,840

32. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Profit after taxation 1,074,551,943 706,815,773
Weighted average number of outstanding shares 117,054,508 95,550,183
Earnings per share Rs. 918 Rs.7.39

32.1Weighted average number of shares includes the shares issued pursuant to amalgamation under the Scheme of Merger {note 1.3).

32.2 A diluted garnings per share has not been presented as the Company did not have any convertible instruments in issue as at
December 31, 2018 and 2017 which would have any effect on the earnings per share if the option to convert is exercised.
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2018 2017
Note Rupees
33. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Profit before taxation 1462,692,352 170,838,613
Add / (less): Adjustments for non-cash charges and other items
Depreciation 210,635,453 22,964,631
Operating assets written off = 1641863
Interest expense 143,996,225 -
Gain on disposal of operating assets (2,413,577} (2,510,570)
Interest income (51192,398) (105,870,375}
Provision for slow moving, obsolete
and damaged stock - net of stock written off 114,024,886 4,340,498
Allowance for impairment of trade debts 23,302 158,196
Provision for staff retirement benefits 28,268,252 8,106,715
443342143 (70,268,942)
Profit before working capital changes 1,906,034,495 1100,562,671
Effect on cosh flow due to working copital changes
{Increase) f decrease in current assets
Stores and spares {19.531,027) -
Inventories (408,945,247) (271,420,297)
Trade debts (144,343 381) 44,490,059
Leans and advances 32346271 (201.863,304)
Trade deposits and prepayments (12,526,273) (52132,311)
Refunds due from Government {6,369.421) (83728112)
Other receivables (587842 508) 94,058,423
{1145,211.586) (470,595,542)
{Decrease) / increase in current liabilities
Trade and other payables (260,982 433) 20573968
Provisions (5,443,034) -
(266,425,473) 205,739,168
(1,411637,059) (264,856,374)
494,397,436 835,713,297
34, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank balances 14 707442531 1103,01,566
Irvestment at amortised cost 13 - 198,542,857
Running finance under mark-up arrangement 20 (1,591,779,855) -
{884,337,324) 1,301,554,423
35. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Unpoid dividend
2018 2017
Rupees
Balance as at January O - -
Mon cash changes - dividend declared 477,750,915
Financing cash outflows (77,.903,044) -
Balance as on December 31 399847871 -
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36. SEGMENT INFORMATION

26.1 For management purposes, the activities of the Company are organised into one operating segment i.e. Consumer
healthcare segment. The Company operates in the said reportable operating segment based on the nature of the products,
risks and returns, organisational and management structure and internal financial reporting systems. Accordingly, the figures
reported in these financial statements are related to the Company’s only reportable segment.

37. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVES

The amounts charged in these financial statements for remuneration of the Chief Executive, Director and Execulives are as
follows:

Chief Executive Director Exscitives*™™
2018 2017 208 2017 2018 2017
Rupees
Managerial remuneration 20,016,799 10823609 F012203 4888674 132976485 51541608
Bonus - note 37.2 7,765,088 7403821 5507566 291276 52422469 24151695
Retirement benefits* 3923293 2178251 13743 983846 126675999 9,871,049
House rent 4675438 4870133 3155433 2199906 S6660620 2207807
Litilities 1038983 1082 248 Fzz20 488871 12520993 4904880
Medical expenses 62913 104,379 M,204 131,367 3038781 1293428
Others 2967708 B73702 1573135 1297990 28881886 13199013

40,450,201 27336141 19441212 1201930 413,245,233 127033650
MNumber of person 1 1 ik 1 54 21

* Retirement benefits represent amount contributed towards various retirement benefit plans.

** During the year, Mr. Farhan Haroon resigned on October 05, 2018 and Mr. Talal Ahmed was appointed as finance director
on October 05, 2018.

*** Comparative figures have been restated to reflect changes in the definition of executive as per the Companies Act, 2017,

371 In addition to the above, fee paid to 2 (2017: 2) non-executive directors for attending Board of Directors meetings during
the year amounted to Rs. 0.85 million (2017: Rs. 1.2 million).

37.2 Bonus includes share based payments as Share Appreciation Rights (SARs) given to the Chief Executive and Executive
Director amounting to Rs, 28.97 million (2017: Rs. 9.59 million). These are granted every year and are payable upon comple-
tion of three years of quatifying period of service. These are linked with the share value of ultimate parent companu,
GlaxoSmithkline plc, UK.

Chief Executive and Executive Director are also provided with free use of Company maintained cars in accordance with the
Company policy.

38. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related parties include associated companies, directors and key management personnel of the Company. The transac-
tions with related parties are carried out in the normal course of business at contracted rates. The receivables and pauables
are mainly unsecured in nature. Details of transactions with related parties and balances with them at period end, other than
those which have been disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, are as follows:

208 2017
Rupees

Relationship Mature of transactions

Associated

companies: a. Purchase of goods 5,377180,960 4451684276
b. Service fees charged by GlaxoSmithKline Pakistan Limited 12,000,000 12,000,000
c. Expenses eross charged by GlaxeSmithKline Pakistan Limited 126,790,180 Nn3721432
d. Recovery of expenses from GSK OTC . 23,760,000
&. Interest income on loan to GSK OTC : TLI73]51
I. Sales by GlaxoSmithKline Pakistan Limited

as an 3gent of the ﬂnmpaﬂu 5,25&555,55? 5,221,358,528
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2018 2017
Rupees
Relationship Mature of transactions
Staff retirement
funds; a. Expense charged for retirement benefit plans 57,046,698 18,651,044
b, Pauments to retirement benefit plans B2 530877 17,036,542
Key management
personnel: a. Salaries and other employee benefits 136,670,028 81021708
b. Past employment benefits 1,994 932 7220020
c. Sale of assets - sales proceeds 1907000 3,010,200

28,1 Balances of related parties as at December 31, 2018 are included in the respective notes to the financial staternents,
These are settled in the ordinary course of business. The receivables and payables are mainly unsecured in nature and bear

no interest.

38.2 Detolls of related parties

Nome of CEQ/

Country of Aggregate %

5 No Company Name Wicaispsabion Registered oddress Baosis of association of shoreholding Principal officer

1 GlaxoSmithiline Metherlands Huis ter Heideweg 62, 3705 Hoiding 85.79% Chantal
Consumer LZ, Zeist Company Meertens
Healthcare BV,

2 GlaxeSmithKline England 980 Great West Road, Assotiated MAA Melanie Foster
Consumer Brentford Middiesex, TWBSGS company Hawes
HealthCare (LK)

Trading Limited

3 GlaxoSmithkline: Inglia Patiala Road, Natha Associated N/ Navnest Salufa
Consumer Health 147200, Dist Patiada, companiy
Care Limited Punjab, India

4 GlaxoSmithiline England S80 Great West Road, Associated hfA Adam Walker
Export Limited Brentford, Middlesex, TWE 865 company

5 GlaxoSmithKline England 800 Great West Road, Assoclated N/A Melanie Foster
Conspmer Trading Brentford, Middlesex, TW8 365 company Hawes
Services Limited '

B Glaxn Consumer Switzerland Route de [Etraz, Case Poslate Associated MAA Erick Reinartz
HealthCare, S.A 1279, 1260 Nyon 1 company

7 GlaxoSmithkline England 880 Great West Road, Associated MIA Adam Walker
Services Unlimited Brentfond, Middiesex, TWB 2G5 company

8 GlaxoSmithKline Philippings 2266 Dan Ching Associated hfA Lucienne
Consumer Healthcape Races Avenue, . COMPany Ayeling
Philippines inc Makati City, Philipines

| GlaxoSmithkline Singapore .23. Roshester Park, Associated BA Debijit Rudra
Consumer Healthcare Singapore company
Pte Limnited

i GlaxpSmithkline Pakistan 35 - Dackyard Road, Associated hafA M. Azizul Hag
Pakistan Limited West Wharl, Karachi campany

All above entities are operational and further, the independent auditor of the above entities has issued an unqualified opinion

on the latest available financial statements.

38, PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION

The capacity and production of the Company's plants are indeterminable as these are multi-product and involve varying

processes of manufacture,
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2018 2017
Rupees
40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
40.1 Financial ossets as per stotement of finoncial position
Finonciol assets meosured at amortised cost
- Loans to employees 10,495,280 1,288,038
- Advances and deposits 18,032,301 29,457039
- Trade debts 754 862,978 21,293,332
= Loan o GSK.OTC - 1,000,000,000
- Interest accrued ] 20843727
- Other receivables 803,657,012 26,316,205
- Investments - at amortised cost E 198,542,857
- Cash and bank balances 70744253 103,011,566
2,094,490,107 2,650,762,824
40.2 Financiol liobilities as per statement of finonciol position
Finonciol liabilities measured at omortised cost
- Trade and other payables 1592136761 1146,51.091
- Running finance under mark-up arrangement 1,591,779.855 -
= Accrued mark-up 43612907 -
- Unpaid dividend 399,847,871 -
3627377394 1.148,51,091

40.3 Foir volues of ffnonciof ossets and Uobilities

{a) Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market

participants at the measurement date.

The carying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements approximate to their fair values,

{b) Fair value estimation

The Company discloses the financial instruments carried at fair value in the statement of financial position in accordance with the

following fair value hierarchy:

-Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

-Level 2: Inputs other than guoted prices included within Level 1that are observable for the asset or lability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or

indirectly (e, derfved from prices).

-Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

As at Decemnber 31, 2018, the Company does not have any financial instruments carried at fair value,

41. Finonciol Risk Monagement
41.1 Fingneiol risk factors

Introduction ond overview

The Company has exposure ta the following risks from financial instruments:

- market risk
- credit risk
= liquidity risk

This note presents information about the Company's exposure to each of the abave risks, Cormpany's objectives, policies and processes for
measuring and managing risk, fair value of financial instruments and the Company's management of capital.
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Financial risk factors and risk management framework

The Company’s overall risk management programme focuses on having cost effective funding as well as to manage financial risk to
minimize earnings volatility and provide maximum return to shareholders.

The Company’s ohjective in managing risk is the creation and protection of shareholders' value. Risk is inherent in Company's activities
but it is managed through monitaring and controlling activities which are based on limits established by the internal controls set on
different activities of the Company by the Board of Directors. These cantrols and limits reflect the business strategy and market
envirenment of the Company as well as the level of the risk that the Campany is willing to acceptl.

The Company's finance and treasury department oversees the management of the financial risk reflecting changes in the market
conditions and also the Company’s risk taking activities, and provide assurance that these activities are governed by appropriate policies
and procedures and that the financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company's palicies and risk
appetite,

{a) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest rates, foraign
exchange rates or the equity prices due to a change in credit rating of the issuer or the instrument, change in market sentiments,
speculative activities, supply and demand of securities and liquidity in the market. There has been no change in the Company's
exposure to market risk or the manner inwhich this risk is managed and measured,

Under market risk the Company is exposed to currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk (equity price risk).

(1) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will luctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates. The liability is mainly denominated in US Doltars. Net payables exposed to foreign currency risk as at December 31,
2018 amount to Rs. 62217 million {2017; 55.8 million),

At December 31, 2018, if the Pakistan Rupes had weakened / strengthened by 5% against the US Dollar with all other variables held
constant, profit before tax for the year would have been lower / higher by Rs. 311 million (2017; Rs. 3.28 million), mainly as a result of
foreign exchange losses / gains on transiation of US Dollar-denominated trade payables and trade debts.

(if) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will Auctuate because of changes in markat
interest rates.

The Company's interest rate risk arises primarily from balances held in savings account with banks, These are benchmarked to
variable rates which exposes the Company to cash flow interest rate risk only.

Carrying amount

2018 2017
Rupees
Fixed rate instruments
Financial assets
- bank balance on deposit accounts 400,000,000 1,000,000,000
Voriable rate instruments
Financial assets
- bank balance on PLS savings account 270103653 103,011,566
Financial liabilities
- running finance under mark-up arrangement 1,.591,773.855 -

Cosh flow sensitivity onalysis for vorioble rale instrument

Achange of 100 basis points in interest rates at the year end would have increased or decreased the profit for the year and
shareholder's equity by Rs, 13.22 million (2017: Rs. 1.03 million). This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant.
The analysis is performed on the same basis as for 2017,
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() Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a inancial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices {other than those arising from currency risk or interest rate risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific ta the
individual financiat instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

As at December 31, 2018, there are no equity investments of the Company measured at fair value, hence no equity price risk
exists,

(b} Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrurment will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial
lass, without taking inte account the fair value of any collateral. Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counter parties ane
engaged in similar business activities or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be
similarly affected by changes in econormic, political or other conditions. Cancentration of credit risk indicates the relative sensitivity of the
Company's perforrance to developments alfecting a particular industry.

Credit risk arises from balances with banks and financial institutions, trade debts, loans, advances, deposits and ather
receivables. The credit risk on Gauid fund is limited because the counter parties are banks with reasonably high credit rating.

2018 2017
Rupees
Loans to emnployees, interest accrued and other receivables 814152299 48458030
Trade debts 754,862,976 2M,2893332
Loan to GSK OTC - 1,000,000,000
Advances and deposils 18,032,3M 29457039
Investments - at amortised cost - 198,542 857
Bank balances 70744253 103,011,566
2,084,480,107 2,650,762,824

As at December 31, 2018, the Company’s greatest concentration of credit risk was Rs. 511.46 million, Rs. 458.48 million, Rs. 276,65
million and Rs. 65145 million with GSK Pakistan, NPPL, Premier Agencies and Citibank respectively.

Trade debts of the Company are not exposed to significant credit sk as the Company trades with credit worthy third parties. Trade debts of
Fs. 94.24 million (2017: Bs, 22.79 million) are past due of which Rs. 3.22 million (2017: Rs. 3.19 million) have been impaired, Past due but
not impaired balances include Rs. 5211 million (2017: R=. .18 million) outstanding for more than three months. Trade debts are written off
when the company do not have realistic prospect of recovery.

Loans to emplayees are secured against their retirement beniefits.

Investrnents represent Treasury bl The Treasury bill is of short term nature and therefore has & low credit fisk.

The credit guality of Company's bank balances can be assessed with reference to external credit ratings as follows:

Bank Date of Rating —————— Rating ————
rating agency Short term Long term

Citibank N.A. March, 2018 Muoody's P Al

Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited December, 2018 PACRA Alt ABA

Trade receivables are grouped into customer segments that have similar loss patterns to access credit risk while other financial asses are
accessed individually. Historical and forward - looking information is considered to determine the appropriate expected credit loss
allowance, the Company believes that there is no further credit risk provision reguired in excess of the allowance for expected credit losses
already recognised.

Settlement risk

Settlement risk is the risk of loss due to the failure of an entity to honour its obligations to deliver cash or other assets as contractually
agreed on sale. The risk is addressed more or less in accordance with the parameters set out in the credit risk management above,
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() Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk represents the risk that the Company will encounter difficulties in meeting obligations associated with financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or anaother financial asset. Prudent Uquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities, Due to dynamic nature of the business the Company maintains fexibility in funding by maintaining committed
credit lines available.

The Company's liquidity management involves projecting cash flows and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to
meet the monitoring of liquidity ratios and maintaining debt financing plans.

42 PROVIDENT FUND RELATED DISCLOSURE

The investments out of the Funds have been made in accordance with the pravisions of Section 218 of the Companies Act,
2017 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

2018 2017
MNumber

43. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
Mumber of employees including
contractual employees atthe end of year 480 63
Average number of employees including
contractual employees during the year 434 59
Employees warking in the Company factory at the year end 356 -
Average employees working in the Company's factory
during the year 3z -

44, CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safequard the Company's ability to continue as a going concern so
that it can continue to provide adequate returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

Pre merger, the capital structure of the Company was equity based with no financing through borrowing. Post merger, the
Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working capital with a view to maintain

appropriate mix between various sources of finance to minimise risk. The Company calculates debt to capital ratio by dividing
borrowings net of bank balance with equity as at year end,

The debt to capital ratio as at December 31, 2018 is 013 (2017: Nil).

45, BUSINESS UNITS - GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATION AND ADDRESSES

Business units Addresses
Factory Petaro Road, Jamshoro, Pakistan
Distribution / Sales offices - Maorth Sales Office - Aleem House, Plot no. 409, Sector 1-9, Industrial Arga, Islamabad
- 54000
- Central Sales Office - 880-B, Faisal Town, Lahore - 54700
Warehouses and storage facilities - Connect Logistics {Private) Limited - Plot no. 73 B,C,0, Main Mauripur Road, Hawksbay

Phase 2, Karachi, Pakistan

- Emirates Supply Chain Services (Private) Limited - 46 KM, Multan Road, Nathy
Khalsa, Manga Mandi, Lahore Pakistan

- Emirates Supply Chain Services [Private) Limited - Plot no. 408, Sector 1-8, Industrial
Area, Istamabad, Pakistan
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Business units Addresses

Warehouses and storage facilities - DML Global Forwarding Pakistan (Private) Limited - D22/4, Manghopir Road, S..TE,

Karachi
Parazelsus Pakistan (Private) Limited - Plot no.31, Street no. 3, Sector-1-10/3,
lslamabad

- Parazefsus Pakistan (Private) Limited - Shed no. F9, Plat Na. 5-1, Sunvey no. 230,
Sector no. 02, Road 4000, Korangi Industrial Area, Karachi

- Parazelsus Pakistan (Private) Limited - Plot no. A-8 Block-E, Main Alrport Road,
Latifabad No. 8, Hyderabad

- Parazelsus Pakistan (Private) Limited - Sultana mansion, Vehari, Multan road, Joseph
Street

- Parazelsus Pakistan (Private) Limited - P-247/1, Inside Al-Jannat Complex, Main
Samundari Road, Faisalabad

- Jamshoro - Petaro Road, Jamshoro, Pakistan
Piot B-3, SITE, Kotri

46, SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on March 18, 2019 proposed a cash dividend of Rs. 5 per share (2017: Rs. 5 per
share) amounting to Rs. 585.27 (2017: Rs. 477.75 million) subject to the approval of the members in the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Companuy.

47, CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Corresponding figures have been reclassified in these financial statements, wherever necessary to facilitate the comparison
and to conform with changes and presentation in the current year. However, no significant reclassifications were made in the
financial statements.

48. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were appraved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on
March 18, 2018,

(J TS %m_ﬁ:_r + T \ak
Chief Financial Officer Director Chief Executive Officer
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Stakeholders’
Information

On December 31, 2018 there were 5,060 members on the record of the company's ordinary shares.

DIVIDEND PAYMENT

OWNERSHIP

The Board of Directors of the company has recommended 50% final dividend far the year ended 2018. The proposal shall be placed before
the sharehalders of the company In the Annual General Meeting for their consideration and approval on April 23, 2019, The dividend, if
approved by the shareholders, shall be directly credited to their designated bank accounts to the shareholders listed in the company's share
register at the close of business on Apri 16, 2019 and shall be subject to the Zakat and Tax deductions as per law.

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

RESULTS

First quarter ended March 31, 2018 Approved and Announced on 27-04-2018

Half year ended June 30, 2018 Approved and Announced on 24-08-2018

Third quarter ended September 30, 2018 Approved and Announced on 30-10-2018

Year ended December 31, 2018 Approved and Announced on 18-03-2019

DIVIDEND

Final - Cash (2017) Approved on 29-03-2018
Entitlernent date 22-03-2018
Statutory limit upto which payable 18-04-2018
Paid on 17-04-2018

4TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING TO BE HELD ON 23-04-2019

Shareholding Position / Free Float Shares

Mo, of Mo, of
Shareholders Shares Held Percentoge
Shares in Physical Reqister 1673 101,584,380 B86.80
Shares Deposited in Central Depository Sustem 3387 15,470,128 13.20
TOTAL 5,060 17,054,508 100.00

Free Float Shares of the Company 15,469,798 i.e (13.22 %) Shares out of total 117,054,508 Shares as on
December 31, 2018.
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Pattern of
Shareholding

As at December 31, 2018
Having shares
MNo. of Shareholders Shares Held percentage
From [ To

1826 1 100 54,991 0.06
16689 m 500 432163 0.37
513 501 1000 391125 D33
753 100 5000 1,668,022 144
134 5001 10000 838,057 0.80
45 100M 15000 566,796 0.48
27 15001 20000 461,470 0.39
7 20001 25000 383,447 0.33
10 2500 20000 276,323 0.24
8 300Mm 35000 256,145 022
B 350 40000 2287N1 019
2 40001 45000 85,906 007
2 4500 50000 95,255 oos
7 500 55000 368,760 032
3 550 60000 177513 015
1 B5001 70000 68,000 0os
1 70001 75000 73,359 o0.os
1 a00m 95000 90,774 008
2 950Mm 100000 193,327 0
i 160001 165000 160,400 014
1 200001 205000 203,800 a7
1 245001 250000 249,900 0.21
1 25000 255000 254,043 022
1 3050M 310000 308,656 0.26
1 365001 370000 367100 0.3
1 385001 390000 389,040 033
1 249000 2485000 2493557 212
1 26100 2615000 2813605 223
i 27500 2755000 2,753,004 235
2 21500001 78920000 100,423,259 8579
5,080 117,054,508 100.00
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Categories
of Shareholders

As at December 31, 2018
Particulars Snﬂﬁ%uﬁiers Sh:{fgéc?-';elri Percentoge
CEQ, Directors and their spouse(s) & minor children 3 332 0.00
Associated companies, undertakings and related parties 2 100,423,259 8579
Banks, DFI, non-banking finance companies, and pension funds 19 395,818 D.34
Insurance companies & Takaful 4 55,206 0.05
Public sector companies and corporations B 314441 259
Mutual Funds & Modarabas 14 3668182 313
Foreign Companies 4 2563057 219
Companies, Trust & Others a8 716,787 D&l
General Public / Individuals - Local 4,306 6,024,333 515
General Public / Individuals - Foreign 4 62,513 005
TOTAL 5,060 117,054,508 100.00
S?) areholding
As at December 31, 2018
No. of No. of "

Shareholders Shares Held Percentoge
CECQ & Directors
MR. SOHAIL AHMED 1 1 0.00
SYED AZEEM ABBAS NAQWVI 1 1 0.00
MRE. MUHAMMAD ZINDAH MOIN MOHAJIR 1 330 0.00
Associated Companies
GLAXOSMITHKLINE CONSUMER HEALTHCARE BV, 1 100,423,259 8579
Public Sector Companies ond Corporations
IDBL (ICPUNIT) 1 24 0.00
NATIDONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN 1 1,557 0.00
NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN 1 389,040 0.33
STATE LIFE INSURANCE CORP. OF PAKISTAN 1 2,753,004 235
NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN 1 B 000
PAK-LIBYA HOLDING CO(PVTILTD, 1 780 0.00
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No. of No. of

Shareholders Shares Held Percentage

Mutual Funds & Modarabaos

CDC - TRUSTEE MEEZAN BALANCED FUND 1 203,800 o
CDC - TRUSTEE FIRST DAWOOD MUTUAL FUND 1 48,755 0.04
CDC - TRUSTEE AL MEEZAN MUTUAL FUND 1 248,900 021
CDC - TRUSTEE MEEZAN ISLAMIC FUND 1 308,656 026
CDC - TRUSTEE NAFA STOCK FUND 1 15,600 0.0
CDC - TRUSTEE NIT-EQUITY MARKET OPPORTUNITY FUND 1 noog 0.
CDC - TRUSTEE NATIONAL INVESTMENT (UNIT) TRUST 1 2613605 223
CDC-TRUSTEE NITIPF EQUITY SUB-FUND 1 1500 0.00
CDC - TRUSTEE NAFA ISLAMIC ACTIVE ALLOCATION EQUITY FUND 1 12,200 0.0
CDC - TRUSTEE MEEZAN ASSET ALLOCATION FUND 1 87000 0.08
CDC TRUSTEE - MEEZAN DEDICATED EQUITY FUND 1 22800 ooz
CDC - TRUSTEE NIT ISLAMIC EQUITY FUND 1 35,370 003
CDC - TRUSTEE AKD INDEX TRACKER FUND 1 3,000 0.00
B.R.E. GUARDIAN MODARABA 1 43,806 0.04

Fareign Companies

HABIB BANK AG ZURICH ,SWITZERLAND 1 3,000 0,00
HABIB BANK AG ZURICH, DEIRA DUBAI 1 52,700 005
MATTHEWS EMERGING ASIA FUND 1 2493557 213
LAERERNES PENSION FORSIKRINGSAKTIESELSKAB 1 13,800 0.01

Members Having 5% or More of Voting Rights

No. of

Name of Shoreholder(s) Shares Heid Percentage

GLAXOSMITHKLINE CONSUMER HEALTHCARE BV. 100,423,259 8579

Shares Traded by Directors / Executives

No shares of GSKCH Limited, were traded by Directors and Executives during the financial year from
1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018.
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Notice Of
Annual General Meeting

Motice is hereby given to the members that the 4th Annual General Meeting of GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare
Pakistan Limited will be held on Tuesday, 23 April 2019 at 11:30 a.m. at Ramada Karachi Creek Hotel, Zulfigar Street 1, DHA
Phase 8, Karachi to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. Toreceive, consider and adopt the audited Financial Statements together with the Directors and Auditors' Report thereon
for the year ended 31 December 2018.

2. To consider, approve and deciare the dividend on the ordinary shares of the Company. The Directors have recommended
a final cash dividend of 50% (Rs.5.00 per ordinary share of Rs. 10 each), for the year ended 31 December 2018,

3. To appoint External Auditors of the Companuy for the ensuing year, and to fix their remuneration. The Board of Directors, on
the recommendation of Audit Committee of the Companuy, has proposed re-appointment of M/s Deleitte Yousuf Adil
Chartered Accountants as external auditors, for the year ending 31 December 2019,

4. To elect seven (7) Directors, as fixed by the Board, in accordance with the provision of Section 159 of the Companies Act,
2017, for a term of three (3) years commencing from 23 June 2019, The names of the retiring directors of the Company,
also eligible to offer themselves for re-election, are as follows:

1} Ms. Annelize Roberts 5} Syed Azeem Abbas Nagvi
2} Mr. Sohail Ahmed Matin B} Mr. M.Z. Main Mohajir
3)  Syed Anwar Mehmood 71 Mr. Talal Javed Ahmed

4)  Ms. Emine Tasci Kauya

ANY OTHER BUSINESS:

1. Totransact any other business with the permission of the Chair,

By Order of the Board
&
Karachi MASHAL MOHAMMAD
2 April 2019 Company Secretary

1. The Share Transfer Books of the Company will be closed for determining the entittement for the paument of Final Dividend
from 17 April 2013 to 23 April 2013 (both days inclusive). Transfer requests received at the Office of the Share Registrar of
the Company at Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, COC House, 99-B, Block - B, 5.M.C.H, Society, Main
Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi at the close of business on 16 April 2013 (Tuesday) will be treated in time for the purposes of
entitlernent to the transferees.

2. Amember entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting may appoint another member as his/her Proxy to attend, speak and
vote at the Meeting on his/her behalf. Instrument appeinting Proxy must be deposited at the Office of the Share Reqistrar
of the Company at Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, CDC House, 98-B, Block - B, SM.CH.S., Main
Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi not less than 48 hours before the time of the Meeting.

3. Shareholders are requested to notify the Company's Share Registrar if there is any change in their registered postal
addresses.

4. Any person who seeks to contest the election of Directors shall file with the Company at its registered office, not Later than
fourteen (14) daus before the above said meeting his/her intention to offer himself/herself for the election of the Directars
in terms of Section 159(3) of the Companies Act, 2017 together with:
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Consent to act as director under Section 167(1) of the Act on a duly filled and signed Form 28.

Declaration for eligibility to act as director of listed company and awareness of duties and powers of directors under the
Companies Act, 2017, Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, Rule Book of Pakistan Stock Exchange
Limited and the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 and other relevant laws and
regulations.

* Declaration of independence in terms of Section 166(2) of the Companies Act, 2017 as required under Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 (applicable only for person filing consent ta act as an independent
director of the Company).

»  Adetailed profile along with office address for placement on the Company’s website.

+ Detail of other directorship and offices held,

Copy of valid CNIC (in case of Pakistan national) / Passport {in case of foreign national), and NTM & Folio No./CDC
Investors Account No./CDC Sub-Account No (applicable for person filing consent for the first time).

5. COC Account Holders will further have to follow the under mentioned guidelines as specified by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP),

A. For Attending the Meeting:

iy Incase of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose securities are in group account
and their registration details are uploaded as per the Regulations, shall authenticate his/her identity by showing his/her
original Computerized Nationat Identity Card (CNIC) or original passport at the time of attending the mesting.

ii) Incase of corporate entity, the Board of Directors' resolution/power of attorney with specimen signature of the nominee
shall be produced (unless it has been provided earlier) at the time of the meeting.

B. For Appointing Proxies:

il Incase ofindividuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose securities are in group account
and their registration details are uploaded as per the Regulations, shall submit the proxy form as per the above
requirement,

iy The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be mentioned on
the farm.

iii} Attested copies of CMNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the proxy form.

iv) The proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC or original passport at the time of the Meeting.

v} Incase of a corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution/power of attorney with specimen signature shall be
submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along with praxy form ta the Companu,

6. Shareholders holding phusical shares are also required to bring their original CNIC and/or copy of CNIC of shareholder(s)
of whom he/she/they hold Proxulies). Such shareholder(s) shall not be allowed to attend and/or sign the Register of
Shareholders/Members at the AGM without such CNIC(s).

7. Submission of Copy of CNIC/NTN (MANDATORY):

Further to SECP's directives, including SRO 83101)/2012 and other relevant rules, the electronic dividend should also bear
CNIC number of the registered shareholder or the authorized person, except in the case of minor(s) and corporate
shareholders.

As per Regulation Mo, 6 of the Companies (Distribution of Dividend) Regulations, 2017 and Section 243(2) of the Companies
Act, 2017, the Company will be constrained to withhold payment of dividend to shareholders, in case of non-availability of
identification number of the shareholder or authorized person (CNIC ar NTHN).

Accordingly, the individual members who have not yet submitted a copy of their valid CNIC to the Company/Share Registrar
are once again requested to send their CNIC copy at the earliest directly to the Company's Share Registrar at Central
Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, COC House, 99-B, Block - B, 5.M.C.H.5., Main Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi,
Corporate entities are requested to provide their National Tax Number (NTN) and Folio Number along with the authorized
representative's CNIC copu,

8. Payment of Cash Dividend Through Electronic Mode (Mandatory):
In accordance with Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017 and Regulation No. 4 of the Companies (Distribution of

Dividends) Regulations, 2017, it is mandatory for a listed company to pay cash dividend to its shareholders only through
electronic mode directly into bank account designated by the entitled shareholders,
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In order to recelve dividend directly into their bank account, shareholders are requested to fillin "E-Dividend Mandate Form”
available on Company’s website i.e. www.pk-consumerhealthcare.gsk.com and send it duly signed along with a copy of CNIC
to the Registrar of the Company i.e. Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, Shares Registrar Department, COC
House 99-B, Block ‘B’ S.M.CH.5, Main Shahra-e-Faisal Karachi in case of physical shares.

In case shares are held in COC then "E-Dividend Mandate Form” must be submitted directly to shareholder’s
broker/participant/COC account services.

9. Circulation of Annual Audited Accounts via CD/DVD/USB or Any Other Media

SECP through its SRD 470(1)/2018, dated 31 May 2016, has allowed companies to circulate the annual balance sheet,

profit and loss account, auditors’ report and Directors’ report ete ("annual audited accounts”) to its members through
CO/DVD/USE at their registered addresses. In view of the above, The Company has obtained shareholders’ approval inits
Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 20 Novermnber2017 in this regard, the Company has sent its Annual Report 2017 toits
shareholders in the form of CO. Any member requiring printed copy or electronic format through email of Annual Report 2018
may send a request using a Standard Request Form as annexed and placed on Company’s website as well:
www,pk-consumerhealthcare.gsk.com,

Members are hereby informed that pursuant to SECP SRO 787(1)/2014 dated 8 September 2014, and under Section 223(6)
of the Companies Act 2017, circulation of Audited Financial Statements and Motice of Annual General Meeting has been
allowed to be circulated in electronic format through email.

Members can request a hard copy of the same, which shall be provided free of cost within seven (7) days from receipt of
requisition.

10. Revision of Withholding Tax on Dividend Income:

Please further note that under Section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and pursuant to Finance Act 2017 withholding
tax on dividend income will be deducted for 'Filer’ and 'Mon-Filer’ shareholders @ 15% and 20% respectively. According to
clarification received from Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) withholding tax will be determined separately on ‘Filer/Mon-Filer'
status of Principal shareholder as well as Joint Holder(s) based on their shareholding proportions, in case of joint accounts,

In this regard, all shareholders who hold shares with joint shareholders are requested to provide sharehaolding proportions of
Principal shareholder and Joint Holder(s) in respect of shares held by them to our Share Registrar, in writing as follows:

Principal Shareholder Joint Shareholder
Folio / Name Shareholding Shareholding
CDS Sﬁﬂs and Proportion Ngrﬂ;eca;d Proportion
Account # CNIC # (No. of Shares) (No. of Shares)
Motes:

& The required information must be reached to our Share Registrar by 16 April 2019; otherwise it will be assumed that the
shares are equally held by Principal shareholder and Joint Holder(s) and tax will be deducted accordingly.

b. Shareholders are therefore requested to please check and ensure filer status from Active Taxpayers List (ATL) available at
FER website http:/www.for.gov.pk/ as well as ensure that their CNIC / Passport number has been recorded by the
Participant / Investor Account Services or by Share Registrar {in case of physical shareholding). Corporate bodies
{non-Individual shareholders) should ensure that their names and National Tax Numbers (NTN) are available in ATL at
FER website and recorded by respective Participant / Investor Account Services or in case of physical shareholding by
Company's Share Registrar,

c. Withholding tax exemption from dividend income, shall only be allowed if a copy of valid tax exemption certificate is made
available to the Company’s Share Registrar by 16 April 2019
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11. UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND / SHARES:

Pursuant to Section 244 of the Companies Act, 2017, any shares issued, or dividend declared by the Company, which
remain unclaimed or unpaid for a perlod of three years form the date it become due pauable shall vest with the Federal
Government after compliance of procedures prescribed under the Company Act, 2017, Section 244(1){a) of the ACT requires
the Company to give a 80 days’ notice to the members to file their claims with the Companuy. Further SECP vide Direction
No. 16 of 2017 issued on July 07, 2017 directed all listed Companies issued such natice to the members and submit
statement of unclaimed shares or dividend or any other instruments which remain unclaimed or unpaid for a period of three
(3) years from the date it is due and payable as of May 30, 2017.

12. Postal Ballot/E-Voting

In accordance with the Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018, for the purpose of election of Directors and for any
other agenda itern subject to the requirements of section 143 and 144 of the Companies Act, 2017, members holding in
aggregate 10% or more shareholding as per law, will be allowed to exercise their right of vote through postal ballot i.e. by
post or e-vating, in the manner and subject to conditions contained in aforesaid Regulations,

13. Consent for Video Conference Facility:

In accordance with Section 132(2) of the Companies Act, 2017, Members can also avail video conference facility.

If the Company receives consent from members holding in aggregate 10% or more sharehiolding residing at a geographical
location other the city of the Meeting, to participate in the meeting through video conference at least 7 days prior to the date
of the Annual General Meeting, the Companu will arrange video conference facility in that city subject to availability of such
facility in that city. In this regard, please fill the following form and submit the same to the registered address of the
Company 7 days before holding of the Annual General Meeting.

The Company will intimate to Members regarding the venue of video conference facility at least 5 days before the date of
the Annual General Meeting along with complete infarmation necessary to enable them to access such facility.

W s sasspmene s s s s i 0 s s i b s e oo BRI A TIEIDER EE
GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Limited, hotderof _____ ______________ ordinary share (s) as per
Reglstered oo CECACDRIMEINDE oo e v e e e hereby opt for video
conferencefacilityat _______ )

Signature of Shareholder
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 GLAXOSMITHKLINE CONSUMER HEALTHCARE PAKISTAN LIMITED
PROXY FORM

A T ST I) O s i e e s _. beinga
Member of GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Limited holding ________________________ ordinary
shares, HEREBYAPPOINT_____ . _____of _______________.,another Memberofthe
Company, failing him/her _ __ __ | e T TR SR Y e A A Ao T as my/our

proxy in my/our absence to attend and to vote and act for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the
Company to be held at the Ramada Karachi Creek Hotel, Zulfigar Street 1, DHA Phase B, Karachi at 11:30 a.m. on Tuesdauy,
23 April 2018 and at any adjournment thereof.

Rs.5/-
As witness mu/our hand(s) this _____ dayof _____________________2018 Revenue
Signed in the presence of: Stamps
 (SignatureofWitness1) (Signature of Witness 2)
' Name of Witness: Marme of Witness:
CHIC Ne: CNIC No:
O i il il i i i i I i NN N
' Address Address:
o (Name in Black letters) "~ Signalreof the Shareholder
i Folio No.
' Notes:

1 The Member is requested:
1a) o alfix Revenue Stamp of Bs. 5/- at the place indicated abowva;
(b} tosigninthe same style of signature as is registered with the Company;
{c}  towrite down Rs/fher Folio Number.

2. Forthe appointment of the above Procy to be valid, this Instrument-of proxy must be received at the Office of the Share Registrar of the Company at

i Share Registrar Department, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, 99-8, Block - B, S.MCH.5, Main Shahra-g-Faisal, arachi, at least 48
i houwrs before the time fixed for the Meeting.

Any alteration made in this instrument of proxy shoutd be initialled by the person who signsit,

inthe case of joint holders, the vate of the senior who tenders a vote whether in person or by Proxy will be accepted to the exclusi

f on of the votes of the other joint holders, and for this purpose seniority will be determined by the order in which the names stand in the Register of

i Members.

For CDC Account Holders / Corporate Entities:

Bt

In addition to the abowve, the following requirements have to be met:

{i}  The proxy form must be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be mentioned on the form.

{iiy  Attested copies of CHIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and of the Praxy must be furnished with the proxy form.

(i} The Prosy must produce his ariginal CNIC or ariginal passport at the time of the Meesting.

{iv) Incase of corporate entities, the Board of Directors’ resolution/power of attorney and specimen signature must be submitted (unless it has been
provided earlien alongwith proxy forms to the Shane Registrars.
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E-Dividend
Mandate Form

Subject: BANKA NT DETAILS FOR PAYMENT OF DIVIDEND TH H TRONIC MOD

Dear Sir,

W MBS SIS, o o e e ., being a/the
shareholder(s) of GlaxaSmithkline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Limited (the "Company)], hereby, authorize the
Company, to directly credit cash dividends declared by it, in my bank account as detailed below:

(i) Shareholder’s details:

Name of the Shareholder

Folio No./COC Participant 1D & Sub-Account Mo, /CDC 1AS
CNIC/NICOP/Passport/NTN No. (please attach copu)
Contact Number (Landline & Cell Nos.)

Shareholder's Address

{ii} Sharehalder’s Bank account details:

International Bank Account Mumber (IBAN)
Bank's Name

Branch Name & Code No.

Branch Address

It is stated that the above particutars given by me are correct and | shall keep the Company, informed in case of any
changes in the said particulars in future,

Yours truly,

Signature of Shareholder
(Please affix company stamp in case of corporate entity)

Motes:
Please note that:

1. The shareholders whao hold shares in Book-Entry Form are reguested to fill the above-mentioned E-Dividend Mandate Form and send it
te the relevant Broker/Parlicipants/investor Account Services of the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited where the
shareholders’ COC account is being dealt.

2. The shareholders whao hold shares in phusical form are requested to fill the above-mentioned E-Dividend Mandate Form and send it to
the Company's Share Registrar address; i.e.; Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, Share Registrar Department, COC

House, 99-B, Block B, Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi-74400, Pakistan, Tel; 0800-23275 (COCPL).

3. In case of nan-receipt of IBAN with bank details, as requested above, future cash dividend, if any, could be withheld according to the
directives of Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

GlaxaSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Limited and COC shatt not be respansible for any loss, damage, liability or claim
arising, directly or indirectly, frorm any error, of failure in performance of any of its obligations whatsoever, caused due to incorrect
payment instructions provided by the shareholder and/or due to any event beyand the control of the Bank.
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Request Form for
Transmission of Annual Report /AGM Notice

The Share Registrar Services

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Limited
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

99-B, Block ‘B’ SMCHS,

Main Shahra-e-Faisal,

Karachi - 74400

Subject:  Request for transmission of Annual Reports and Noti d copy

I/we hereby request to receive the Annual Report and Motice of AGM through email or in hard copy instead of receiving the
same through CO/OVD/USB as mentioned below;

Mame of the Shareholder(s)
Folio No., / COC Participants 1D A/C No,

CNIC No.

Land Line Phone Mumber

Mobile Number

Passport No. (incase of foreign shareholder)

Valid Email Address

Valid Postal Address

MODE OF RECEIVING ALL FUTURE ANNUAL REPORTS ALONG WITH NOTICE OF AGM THROUGH EMAIL OR IN HARD
COPY UNDER SECTION 223 (6) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017, INSTEAD OF RECEIVING THEM THROUGH
CD/DVD/USB

(Please select any one option)
OPTION 1: Through email on the valid email address provided above
OPTION 2; Hard copies on my registered postal address

It is stated that the above-mentioned infoermation is correct and that |/We will intimate the changes in the abovementioned
information to the Company and / or the concerned Share Registrar as soon as these occur,

I/we hereby further authorize the Company to update my/our particulars mentioned above in the member register of the
Company along with email address mentioned,

I/we undertake that by sending the Audited Financial Statements and Notices through e-mail by the Company, the
Company shall be considered compliant with the relevant requirements of section 223(5} of the Companies Act, 207, In
case a hard copy of Audited Financial Statements and/or Notice of AGM of the Company is desired, a specific request for
the same will be made.

Signature of the Shareholder(s)

Motes:
= Please attach attested photocopy of the valid CNIC / valid Passport
= This Request Form is opticnal and not compulsory
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Factories and Distribution

HEAD OFFICE DISTRIBUTION / SALES OFFICE
35, Dockyard Road, Karachi

West Wharf, Karachi - 74000

Tel: (92 -21) 32315478 - 82 Mehran Town F.6, P/A No.4,

Fax: (92-21) 32311120 Near PSO Petrol Pump,

LAM: M- 475 -725 Brookes Chowrangi,

Korangi Town, Karachi

FACTORY ADDRESS Lahore

Sandoz Nagar, 880-B Faisal Town
Petaro Road, Lahore, 54700
Jamshoro, Pakistan Tel: (92 -42) 35162194

Tel: (92 -22) 2109526-30
Islamabad

Aleern House, Plot No. 409,
Sectaor | = 9, Industrial Area

Tel: (92 - 51) 4433589, 4433598
Fax: (92 - 51) 4433706
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www.jamapunji.pk

Key features:
Gz Licensed Entities Verification

cn Scam meter®

¢4 Jamapunji games”

@ Tax credit calculator*

& Company Verification

B Insurance & Investment Checklist
2? FAQs Answered

w  Jama Punji is an Investor
gz % Education Initiative of
B t?{ Sacurites and Exchange

»EC P

& Lt
L APuniji

AL (6l amnpranns (55 e s

Be aware, Be alert,

Be safe

Learn about investing at
www.jamapuniji.pk

4l Stock trading simulator
(based on live feed from KSE)

E8 Knowledge center
Risk profiler*
B Financial calculator

a Subscription to Alerts (event
notifications, corporate and
regulatory actions)

@ Jamapuniji application for
mobile device

Online Quizzes

Ei W
jamapuniji.pk @jamapuniji_pk

*Mobila apps are also available for download for androld and ios devices



